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State of Wisconsin

‘Notes to The Financial Statemenfs

= B Revenue Bonds

Pr:mary Govemment

' Chapter 18, Wsconsm Statutes authoﬁzes the State o issue
revenue obingattons secured by ap edge of revenues or praperty '
derwe{i fmm the operatnon ofa. pmgram funded by the issuance of
these obligations.” The resuﬁmg bond obilgaiions are not general

- eblagattons of the State

. Transportatwn Revenue Bonds

' L Transportatlon Revenu& chds are ;ssuecé fo ﬁnam:e part of the
*costs Cof certam tsansportatton fac;lzt;es and ‘major hnghway N
. projects Chapter 18, Subchapter lof the Wlscorasm Statutes as

‘amended, Wis. Siat Sec. 8459 and a generai bond resolution
and sertes resolufions authorsze the issuance of these bonds

‘Fhe De;)artment of Transpnrtatson is authonzed to issue a tota! of :

$? 7531 ‘million ‘of revenue bonds. Presentty, there are twelve
: .issues, of Transpcriatuon Revenue Bonds fotaling’ $965.3 mitlion.
S Debt service paymenis are secureff by driver and vehicle
U registratmn fees and also a reserve fund, which will be used inthe
: -event that a deﬁcsency exnsts ;n the redempnon fund

o ' The Transpoztatnon Revenue Bonds |ssued and outstaz\dmg as of
. June 30, 2002 were as fallows {in theusands}

L .J_ssu_.ne intarest Matuﬂty
“lssue Date Ratas ‘i‘hrough Issued Outstandmg
20022 402 301055 702 $ 68,930 .s_ 68,93{}
4/02 4510575 719 . 241865 241,865
ST 301050 722 140,000 © 140,000
2000A - S/00 531055 7/21 93,100 93100
1998A&B 8810/98 40t 55 719 229545 221255
1996A - 5/96 501080 7/08 54,630 35475
1935A  9/95 4810625 707 49495 - 28230
1984A  7/94  B51t075  7/05 41,845 17,860
/93 431050 TM2 116450 88720
1002A8B 7/92 52 702 67030 15,800
' 1,102,880 051,235
Unamortized Premium 14,629
Total

§ 985 264

$1,102,890

Petroleum inspection Fee Revenue Bonds

Petroleum Inspection Fee (PIF) Revenue Bonds are issued 1o
finance claims made under the Petroleum Environmental Cleanup
Fund Award (PECFA) Program for reimbursement of cleanup
costs to sofl and groundwater contamination. The program
reimburses owners for 75 percent 1o 99 percent of cleanup costs
associated with soil and groundwater contamination.
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PresentEy, there are two issues of PIF Bonds outstandmg totaimg
$499.8 million. - Debt service payments are secured by petroleum
;nspectlon fees.

The PEF” revenue bonds issued and outstanding as of Jtzne 30
2{}02 were as foEIows (in thousands):

Issae Enterest Maturity
Issue Date Rates  Through Issued Outstandmg
2001A 12001 50 . 7008 § 30,000 $ --30,000
2000 300 - 501060 72 170250 168,500
= 200,250 198,500
Unamortized Premium — 1297

Total $ 200,250 § 199,797
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Clean Water Revenue Bonds

The Environmental Improvement Fund {the Fund) provides loans
and grants to iocal municipalities to finance wastewater treatment
planning and construction. The Fund is authorized to issue up to
51,368.0 million in Revenue Bonds. At June 30, 2002, there were
ten issues of Revenue Bonds outstanding totaii'ng $669.5 million.
These bonds ars secured by payments on program loans and
earnings of investments.

and_s Essﬁe(ﬁ and outstanding for the Fund as of June 30, 2002
were as follows (in thousands):

- Issue - interest - Maturity
lssue Date  Rates Through Issued Outstanding
2002-1 501 4010525 6/23  $100,000 $100,000
20011 40t 451050 6/21 70,000 67,690
19991 999 5010575  6/20 80,000 74,885
1098-2 808 401055 6/17 104,360 102,560
1998-1 1798 4.0t 5.0 6/18 80,000 77,565
1997-1 287 4510860 8/17 80,000 45,215
19095.1 7/95 4010625 6115 80,000 26,990
1993-2 993 27510625 6/08 81,950 76,120
19931 ©/A3 361053 8/13 84,345 28,935
19911 481 5410698 6111 225,000 57 445
095,655 857,405

Unamortized Premium 10,562
Less: Unamodtized discount

and charge (8,518)
Total, net of discount, charge and

premium $905,655 $659,451

As of June 30, 2002, revenue bond debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmentai activities and business-type activities
are as follows (in thousands}):

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Transportation Petroleumn Inspection Fee Clean Water
Fiscal Year Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
Ended June 30 Principal interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2003 3 38,115 3 50.874 $ 11440 3 10,840 % 35410 % 17,475
2004 48,870 45 856 12,670 10,139 37,305 16,615
2005 51,838 43,468 12,735 9,425 39,080 15,707
2006 54.410 40,875 13,485 8,638 40,885 14,727
2007 56,675 38,180 14,305 7,830 43,170 13,607
2008-2012 263,000 148,052 114,870 18,737 2368610 97,746
20132017 241,870 83484 19,885 577 147 475 43,722
2018-2022 178,580 28,040 - - 75,950 11,793
2023-2027 20,070 508 o - 7410 378
Totat 951,235 480,338 198,500 87,186 657,405 231,770
Unamortized Premium 14 028 - 1,297 - 10,562 -
Unamortized

Discount/Charge - - - - (8,516} -
Total, net $ 965284 $ 480,338 $ 199797 & 67,186 5 659451 § 231,770
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: -Component.i}nizs : Series/ Maturity S
_ S issue Date Rates _ Through Outstanding '
Mﬁscnnsm Housmg and Economtc Davelopment Authorlty Home Ownership Revenue Bonds: _:_ .
. 1987 BAC 8/87 7.375 2015 1,535
’ .-Bonds and notes aayabie at June 3{3 2002 of the WISCOI'!SH"I 199212 892 6.35 td 5875 2024 43,'7'35_ -
i Housang and Economic Deveiapmem Authorsty (Authon‘bj) 1004 AZB ' 4/94 5610675 2025 32,336
; consusted of ihe fol Iowmg {in ihousands) 1905 AGB 1/95 B1ite71 2025 26, 36%}
. . 1965 C.DEE 5/95 5351663 2026 81 865_ g
PR D T . L B 1995 F.G&H 8/95 50107.875 2026 30,430
~‘Revenuebondsandnotes . .0 8. 1,966,342 - 1996 A&B 3/96 51106.15 2027 47,930 -
Speczai obﬁgaiaon and subordanaied EER 1996 C&D 7/96 53t06.45 2027 44 wo_ o
Special obligation - 359,283 1995 E&F 11/96 491062 2027 37,535
Total S - 2325825 1997 AB&C 4197 501743 2028 51,855
Less: Deferred amount on refunding {3,501 1997 DAE 6/87 475160 2028 69,625
.o Total, net .- e 8 2322124 1997 GH&I 1147 4610575 2028 55360
U R S ' 1998 ABAC  4/98  475t06.3 2028 98.815
D 1998 D&E B/98  435t06.04 2028 92,965
: Ai_rzhér:"ty.'s' Revenue an s éﬁ d o tés' 11998 c D& 4/99 3.85 _to 728 2029 77,530
_ : B Ve 1999 A&B 8/99 531058 2021 56,770
s The Aﬂthanty’s revenue bonds and notes aa'e coliaterahzed by the 1990 F3G 7199 43107.07 2030 53,570 -
L .revenues and assets of the At.tthonty ‘subject to the provisions of 2000 A.B&C 3/00 4850778 2030 50,650
Tesolutions --and - note - agreements - which pledge particular 2000 D3E 900 5810 '_7"91 2031 67,580
revenues or assels 1o, spec:f [ bonds of notes. The bonds are 2000 F 7100 Variable 2015 12’3.39 _';
._subject fevd manda!o;y smkmg fund requtrements and may be 2000 G 11/00 465 w.?_gq 2031 36’.050 '
. 2000 H 11/00 Variable 2024 19,845
- redeemed at the Authorntys optfon at varzeus dates and- at prices ) i T
.'5'rangzng from : 10D ‘percent 'to 103 pement of par vafue Any '200“\’3’6 3.95 t@_ 64 - e
L parizcular serias c{miams both term bonds and senai bonds which &D >/01 & Variable 2032 85’.73-5
mature at vanous dates _ _ 2002 A&C 2102 18065 2032 88,020
> g SRR 2002 B 2102 588 2032 20,000 -
. The Aathontys revenue bonds anci nctes outstandmg at June 30, 2062C 2/02 . 3.69 2016 14,945
B 2002 cons:szed of the foﬂowmg (m thousands): : 20020 2106 281 2022 12‘6(.}0
. 1,226,585
_ se;-;esf R o --Magumy Business Development Bonds: o
. Issue _Date  Rates  Through Outstanding 1989 3828 Various ~ 44t052 2014 2215
 Housing Revenue Bonds: o o 1991 4,6 Various 3751055 2006 2,380
1982 A /a2 63106.85 2012 § 49,920 1994 1.4 Various Variable 2014 2,855
L 1992BCD 4/92 C . 7Dto7.2 . 2022 85,795 1885 1-2,4-9 Various Variable 2015 12,450
1993 AZB 10/93 4810565 2023 56,005 19,700
1993 C 12/93 50w 5875 2019 110,060 Nuotes Payable Varigus Variable 2021 75,147
- 19895 AZB 7/95 5.15106.5 2026 42 555 .
| 1998 ABSC 208 4410688 2032 37,050 Authority’s Total Revenue Bonds and Notes $1,966,342
1999 A% 1099  4.56106.18 2031 40,100 =
2000 AZB 9/00 ' Variable 2032 10,685
2002 A, B&C 502 5205886 2033 110,135
2002 D, E&G 5102 Variable 2034 15,850
2002 F 5/02 Variable 2033 10,500
2002 H 5102 468 2033 25520
20021 5/02 Variable 2033 7,055
581,330
(Continued)
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Autharity's Special Obligation Bonds

The Authority's Special Obligation Bonds are special limited
obligations of the Authorily and are collateralized by the revenues
and assets of each bond resolution. '

Special obligation bonds at _.idne 30, 2002 consist of the following
{in thousands): ' '

Maturity

Series/ _ .
Issue . ‘Date Rates Through Qutstanding
Home Qwnership Revenue}Bahdg: S
1983 A 6/92 551065 2025 $ 63855
1994 C&D 894 5510685 2025 21530
1998 F&G 10/98 3851067 2029 81,885
167,380
Singié Family Drawdown Revenue Bonds: :
20011 11/61 . Variable 2004 191,903
- o 191,903
Totat-Special Obligation Bonds $ 359283

The interest rate used to calculate Series 1997 future debt service
is 3.22 percent, which represents the 10-year BMA rate.- "The

: Master Indenture requsres that future variable ‘rate equai the
interest rate in effect on the last date of each of any consecutive
six months ocourring-in the nine full calendar months immediately
preceding the month in which the calculation is made.

Under a Business Deveiapfhé_nt Program and a Beginning Farmer
Program, revenue bonds arg issued which do not constitute
indebtedness of the Authority within the meaning of any provision
or limitation of the Constituion or Statutes of the State of
Wisconsin. They do not congtilute or give rise to & pecuniary
liability of the Authority or a charge against its general credil.
They are payable solely out of the revenues derived pursuant fo
the loan agreement, of in the event of defaull of the loan
agreement, out of any revenues derived from the sale, releasing
or other disposition of the mortgaged property. Therefore, the
bonds are not reflected in the financial staternents. As of June
30, 2002, the Authority had issued 136 series of such bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of $81.2 milfion for economic projects
in Wisconsin,

Housing Revenue Bonds, 2002 Series H ~ The Authority enlered
into an interest rate swap agreement totaling $25.562 milllion which
matures on November 1, 2033, The weighted fixed rate of the
swap agreement is 4.88%. In return, the counferparty pays
interest based on 70% of the USD-LIBOR-BBA rate. During the
term of the swap agreement, the Authority expects to effectively
pay & fixed rate on the debt of 4.68%. The Authority will be
exposed to variable rates if the counterparty to the swap defaults,
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if the swap is terminated or if the effective interest rate determined
by the Underwriter used for Bond Hoider payments increases over
the variable rate index used for calculating the interest received
from the counterparty. At June 30, 2002, the valuation. of this
agreement resulted in an unrealized foss of $974.655  The
interest rate hedge s curently classified as effective. - The
agreement provides the Authority with a synthetic fixed mterest
rate on a portion of its debt. The Authority does not intend 1o
ferminate this agreemeant.

Home Ownership Revenue Bonds, 2002 Series & ~ The Authority
entered into an inderest rate swap agreement tolaling _$20.Q_
million which matures on March 1, 2020, The weighted fixed rate
of the swap agreement is 5.88%. In return, the counterparty béys
interest based on the USD-LIBOR-BBA rate + 35 basis points.
During the ferm of the swap agreement, the Authority expects to
effectively pay a fixed rate on the debt of 5.88%. The Authority
will be exposed to variable rates if the counterparty to the swap
defaults, if the swap is terminated or if the effective interest rate
determined by the Underwriter used for Bond Holder payments
increases over the variable rate index used for calculating’ the
interest received from the counterparty. At June 30, 2002, the
valuation of this agresment resulted in an unrealized 'idss_' of
$809834. The interest rate hedge is currently classified as
effective. The agreement provides the Authority with a synthetic
fixed inferest rate-on a portion of its debt. The Authonty dozs not

a mtend to terminate tbus agreement

Home Ownership Heveaue Bonds, 2002 Series C - The Authonty
enfered into an interest rate swap agreement totaim_g ‘$14.9
milfion which mature's on September 1, 2012, The weighted fixed
rate of the swap agreement is 3.69 %. in return, the oounterparty
pays interest based on 67% of the USD-LIBOR-BBA rate. During
the term of the swap agreement, the Authority expecis to
effectively pay a fixed rate on the debt of 3.69%. The Auih_cﬁty
will be exposed to variable rates if the counterparty to the swap
defaults, if the swap is ferminated or if the effective interest rate
determined by the Undenwriter used for Bond Holder payments
increases over the variable rate index used for calculating the
interest received from the counterparly. At June 30, 2002, the
valuation of this agreement resufted in an unrealized loss of
$402,837. The interest rate hedge is cumently classified as
effective. The agreement provides the Authority with a synthetic
fixed interest rate on a portion of its debt. The Authority d_oe_é not
intend to terminate this agreement. '

Home Ownership Revenue Bonds, 2002 Series D ~ The Authorily
entered intc an intersst rate swap agreement totaling $12.6
million which matures on September 1, 2006. The weighted fixed
rate of the swap agreement is 2.91%. In return, the ccunterparty
pays interest based on 70% of the USD-LIBOR-BBA rate, During
the term of the swap agreement the Authority expects fo
effectively pay a fied rate on the debt of 2.91%. The Authority
will be exposed fo variable rates if the counterparty to the swap
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defaults, if the swap is terminated or if the effective interest 1ate
determined by the Underwriter used for Bond Holder paymenis
“increases over the variable rate index used for calculating the
interest received from the counterparty. Af June 30, 2002, the
‘valuation of this agreament resulted in an unrealized loss of
$121 864, The inferest rate hedge is currently classified as
effective. The agreement ;:)rowdes the Authority with a synthetic
fixed interest rate on a portion of its debt. The Authority does not
intend to iermina:e_ this agreemént.

The commerc:al paper obhgatterzs are issued for terms of one fo
270 days These obligations bear interest at various rates, which

- ranged from 1.50%-1. 65% and 2.70%-3. 10% at June- 30, 2002

and June 30, 2001 respectively. The obltgattons are backed by a
line of credit agreement which is renewable annually and bears
interest at variable rates. based on an index defined in the
agreement. The line of credit agreements used for temporary
. mortgage financing, one of which is renewable annua!ly, bear

- .interest based on the 30 day LIBOR rate. The three agresments

" bear mterest at the rates of 2 375%, 2. 74{}% and 2.344% at June
“30, 2002 '

University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority

In April 1997, the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics
. Authority (the Hospital) issued $50.0 million of Varable Rate

~ Demand Hospital Revenue ‘Bonds, Series 1997. ' The .bond
‘proceeds are designated to finance qualified capital projects.
Principal bayments on the Series 1987 Bonds are dué_anﬂuaiiy
commencing in April 2010 through April 2026. Interest is payable
monthly. The effective annual estimated interest rate was 1.8
. parcent in 2002. '
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in March 2000, the Hospital issued $56.5 milion of Hospntal
Revenue Bonds Series 2000. The bond proceeds are designated
to finance gualified capital projects. Principal payments a_re due
annually commencing in April 2007 through Aprit 2029, Interest
rates range from 5.35 percent to 6.20 percent and interesz is
payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1 each | year
beginning October 1, 2000 :

The Series 1887 Bonds and Series 2000 Bonds are coliateralized
by & security interest in substantially all of the Hospital’ s Tevenue.
The borrowing agreements contain various covenants. and
restrictions snciudmg compliance with the terms and conditions of
the lease agreement {Note 1-B) and provisions Eimﬂmg ‘the
amount of additional indebtedness which may be incurred. The
borrowing agreements alse require the establishment and
mainenance of cerfain funds under the control of a trustee.
These funds are held by the trustee and are refiected in
Restricted and ‘Limited Use Assets — Investments in the
accompanying ﬁnanciai statements.

The Hospztal is !smsted to total borrowings, exclusive of amounts
payable to the primary government, to $175.0 million, with limeted
exceptnons '

The revenue honds of the Hospital do not constitute debt of ihe
State nor is the State liakle on those bonds.
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Badger Tobacco Asset Securmzataon Corporation

In May 2002, -the Badger Tobaceo Asset Securitization
' Corporai*:on issued $1 8 billion of bonds for the purpose of making
a one-time purchase of Tobacco Settlement Revenue (TSRs)
from ‘the State. - Interest on the bonds .is due June 1 and
December 1, commencing December 1, 2002, See Note 1-B for
additional discussion. '

'A"s'ef .Iune 30 20b2 “debt service requirements for principal and
" interest for component umts at May 31 or June 30, 2002 are as
: foliows (m thousands) :

Component Units
“Wisconsin Housing and Economic University of Wisconsin Hospitals Badger Tobacco Asset
Fiscal Year ~  Development Authority Bonds and Clinics Authority Bonds Securitization Corporation -
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal interest
2003 ) - 5208724 $ 111,444 3 - $ 4742 $ - § 99,813
2004 ' 51,560 109,798 - 5,049 - 97,643
2005 259,791 106,880 - 5,042 12,210 97.643
2006 . L. B1435 100,437 - 5,045 12,315 96,972,
2007 64,400 97,051 580 5,045 12,485 96,294
2008-2012 351,560 428,245 7,785 24418 166,665 461,173
2013-2017 . 381,125 320,700 18,575 21,558 209,260 409,432
| 2018-2022 T 338,345 240,435 27,560 16,551 258,810 341,483 -
2023-2027 378,375 147,118 34,515 10,261 404,880 245 886
2028-2032 219,425 45,365 16,485 1,548 514,470 93,882
2033 11,555 5,588 - -
Total - 2,325,825 1,722,076 106,500 98,230 1,591,095 2,040,201 .
Unamortized :
Premium/Discount - - - - (23,750) -
Deferred Amount
on Refunding {3,501) - - - - -
Totat §2.322.124 3 1,722,076 $ 106,500 $ 99,230 $1.567.345 § 2040201
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C. Refundmgs and Earty Extmgurshments
Refundmg ?mwsicns oi GASB Statement No 23 .

The State am;)iemented ‘the provzs;ons of GASB Statement No. 23.
: 'Accountmg and Fmancfai ‘Reporting " for Refandmg of Debt
*Reported by Propnetafy Activities begmmng “with F-'zsz:al Year
1998, This Statement requlres propnetary ‘activities fo adopt
~ certain acceuntmg and reporting changes for -both " current
--refunging and advarace ;'efundmg resuitmg n defeasance of debt

: -GASB Séatament N{; 23 pezmrts but daas not requtre retroactive

' appincatuorz of its: ;Jrov;szans “The- State has chosen not o appiy
the prowstaans retmaciweiy io prevzously sssued fi nanmal
" slatements. ' :

'_Erz February 1996, the State'participated in a refunding (1896
- Series 1) of geneml obiugatnon debt that felt thh;n the provzsnons of
- GASB Statemer;t No. 23. The State is amortlzmg these deferred
amounts aver @ perzod “of . appmxamateiy 19 years usmg the
'stratghtmlme method :

: Curr\ent Year RefundmgslGenerai O}ahgat:on Bonds
: tn October 2{3%}1 the State isﬁued $2471 mrilaon of generat

. obhgatxor; refz.mdmg bonds (2001 Series 1) the prcceeds of which
were, depesuted in"an escrow account to "provide for future ‘debt

service reqmrements on - 3256 3 mlilson of “various’ generai _
T obérganon bonds . ou:standmg at:the time of the refining. 'As a
- ‘result: of the refunc!mg, ihe bonds are oonssciered defeased and

“the assocmted ltabzl;ty removed frsm ‘the financial staiemeﬂts
The' refuntimg fesulted ‘in: ‘a decrease in total debt semce
: paymems by $126 mlihon and 3n econormc gam of $8. 7 msIErcm

in May 20!}2 the State xssued $75 0 million of generai ebhgatlon
refunding bonds (2002 Series 1), the proceeds of whtc_h were used
to gurrent refund préhcipat du@_en §78.8 million of various general
obligation bonds ciutstandéng at‘the time of the refunding. The
refunding resuited | inan ;n»:;rease in total debt service payments by
"$27.8 mitlion with no econoemic gasn or foss.

Prior Year Refundings/General Obligation Bonds

Government Accounting Star;céards Board Statement No. 7
Advance Refundmgs Restiling in Eefeasance of Debt, provides
that refunded debt and assets pEaced in escrow for the payment of
related debt service be exciuded from the financial statements. At
June 30, 2002, approximately $662.7 million of general obiagatlen
bond principal have beera defeased

- Current Year'Réfu_n’dihnge’vénue'Bon'd's' '
In May 2002, the Transportation Revenu@ Bond Program issued

the 2002 Series 1 and 2002 Series 2 refunding honds under a
common plan of finance. Total bond proceeds of $325.2 million
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were deposited in an escrow account to provide for future debt
service requirements on $322.1 million of various transporation
revenue bonds outstanding at the time of the refunding. . ‘As a
result of the refunding, the bonds are considered 1o i:e
extinguished in the year ended June ‘30, 2002 and are not
included as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
The refunding resulted in a decrease in total debt service
'payments by $15.9 million and an economic gain of $10.6 réiilic_mi

Prior Year Refundingsmevenue Bon;!s

Fer fmancnat re;mrtsng purposes, the fo!lowmg primary government

-revenue bonds have been defeased, and therefore, removeci asa

liability from the balance sheet:

s Environmentai Improvement Fund revenue bonds — At June
-30, 2002, revenue bonds outstanding of $41.9 rmlimn have
been defeased.

. Transpcrtazzon revenue bonds -« At June 30, 2002, revenue

bonds oﬂtstanc%mg of $510.5 milion have been defeased. -

In addition, the Wisconsin Housing and - Economic Development
Authority (the Author;ty) & proprietary component unit, defeased

Insured Morlgage Revenue Bonds payable aggregatmg-$_4814'

million and soid the related Insured Mortgage Loan partfolic on
March 1. 1980. As of June 30, 2002, the remaining oatstaadmg_

. -defeased debt was $33.4 million.

Early E_x_tinguishme_nts
Component Units

Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority

During 2002, the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development
Authority (the Authority) redeemed early various outstanéiég
bonds according fo the redemption provisions in the bond
resolutions. These redernptions resulted in extraordinary losses
due to the write-off of remaining unamortized deferred gebt .
financing costs and, in certain instances, the payment of an early
redemption premium. A summary of these early redemptions
follows (in thousands):

Redemptions
Bond issue 2002
Home Ownership Revenue
Bond Resoiutions:

1987 5 104805

1888 116,045

All Other 92,205
Housing Revenue Bonds 100
Generatl funds 1,285
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D. Short-Term F inéncing

The State of Wisconsin Building Commission, an agency of the
State, is empower_ed by law to consider, authorize, issue, and sell
debt obligations of the State. To date, the Commission has
authorized the issuance of notes in anticipation of revenue or bond
financing. When this short-term debt does not meet long-term
fingncing criteria, it is classified among fund labilities.

General Obligation Commercial Paper Notes

The State has ‘authorized General Obligation Commercial Paper
Notes for the acguisition, construction, development, extension,
enlargement, or improvement of land, waters, property, highway,
buildings, equipment or facilities. As of June 30, 2002, the State
issugd $166.7 million of general obligation commercial paper
notes. Periodically, additional commercial paper notes are lesued
to pay for maturing commercial paper notes.

The State intends to make annual May 1 payments on the
outstanding commercial paper nofes that reflect principal
amortization of the notes. The State also intends to make regular
payments to the iss:jing and paying agent that will be equal 1 the
interest due on maturing notes. The State deposited $.4 million
with the paying/issuing agent on May 1, 2002, which will be
applied after June 30, 2002, to. pay-down outstanding -general
) -abiigétion a;;ommerciél_paper notes. At June 30, 2002, the amount
- of commercial paper notes oufstanding was $79.1 million which
had interest rates ranging from 1,30 percent to 1.85 percent and
maturities ranging from July 2, 2002 to October 15, 2002,

Short term debt'ac:tivity for the year ended June 30, 2002 for the
general obligation commercial paper notes was as follows (in
millions):

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Reductions June 30, 2002
$ 854 3 - $ 63 5 79.1

General Obligation Extendible Municipal Commercial Paper

The State has authorized general obligation extendible municipal
commercial paper for the acquisition, construction, development,
extension, enlargement, or improvement of land, waters, property,
highway, buildings, equipment or facilities. As of June 30, 2002,
the State issued $340.5 million of general obligation extendible
municipal commercial paper. Periodically, additional extendibie
municipal commercial papers are issusd to pay for maturing
extendible municipal commercial paper. The State intends to
make annual May 1 payments on the outstanding extendible
commercial paper that reflect principal amortization of the paper.
The State also intends to make regular payments fo the issuing
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and paying agent that will be egual to the upcoming interest due
on maturing notes. At June 30, 2002, the amount of extendible
municipal commercial paper outstanding was $265.9 million which
had interest rates ranging from 1.4 percent to 1.8 percent and
maturities ranging fram July 8, 2002, to September 20, 2002:

Short term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 fér the
general obligation extendible municipal commercial paper was as
follows {in millions}:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Redugtions June 30, 2002
$ 2274 % 417 3 3.2 $ 2659

Petroleum inspection Fee Revenue Extendible Municipal
Commercial Paper

The State has authorized petroleum inspection fes revenue
extendible municipal commercial paper to pay the costs of claims
under ihe Petroleum Environmental Cleanup Fund Award
{PECFA) Program. As of June 30, 2002, the Stale issued $80.0
miliion of petroleum inspection fee revenue extendible mﬁnici’pai
commercial paper. Periodically, additional extendible municipal
commercial paper is issued fo pay for maturing paper. The State
may - periodically -deposit .morey inte the Junior Sub_ordinai_e
Principal Account, -which represents principal payments 10-be
made on the extendible municipal commercial paper. The State
also intends to make regular payments to the issuing and -payin'g
agent that will be equal to the upcoming interest due on mé_’mr’ing
paper. At June 30, 2002, the amount of extendible cammeif:ﬁé!
paper outstanding was $80.0 million which had interest rates
ranging from 1.45 percent to 1.75 percent and maturities ranging
from July 10, 2002 to August 20, 2002

Short term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 for the
pefroleum  inspection fee revenue extendibie  municipal
commercial paper was as follows (in millions):
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Balance Balance
July' 1, 2001 Additions Reductions June 30, 2002
5 - § - $ 80.0

$ 800

Transpbrtation Revenue Cdmmerciaf Paper Notes

The State authorized transportation revenue commercial paper
_ notes o pay the costs of major highway projects and ‘certain State
'.transportanan faCIEltt&S As of June 30, 2002, the -State rsstzed
"$154.8 miltion of transportataon revenue comme:caai paper notes
:Persod:caﬂy additional commercaai paper notes are issued to pay
for maturing commercial paper notes. The State intends to make
annual July 1 paymenté on the commercial paper notes that reflect
prsncnpat amortization of the notes The State also intends fo
Zmake ‘regular payments 10 the assumg and paymg agent that wiil
“be equat to the upcoming interest due on maturmg notes. At June
30, 2002 the amount cf commercxai ‘paper notes outstanding Was
. $136 7 mitlion wh:cﬁ had interest rates ;‘aagmg frem 1.3 percent to
: 1.55 percent and maturities rangmg from August 2, 2002 to
December 5, 2902

' Shon term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 for the
transportataon revenue oemmerctal paper notes ‘was as foliows (in
m:li:ons}

_-Ba-Eanc:e : Balance

July1,2001  Additions  Reductions  June 30, 2002
$ 1417 S - s 50 § - 1367

E. Certificates of Participation

The Stete established a faclity in 1992 that provides lease

purchase financing for property ang certain service items acquired _

by State agencies. This facility is the Third Amended and
Restated Master Lease 1892-1. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of this agreement, the trustee for the facility issues
parity Master lease cerlificates of padicipation that evidence
proportionate interest of the owners thereof in lease payments. A
common pool of collateral ratably secures all Master Lease
cerdificates. Title in the property and service items purchased
under the facility remains with the State and the State grants 1o the
Trustee, for the benefit of alt Master Lease certificate holders, a
first security interest in the leased tems. At June 30, 2002, the
foliowang parity Master Lease certificates were outstandmg

+  Master Lease Ceriificates of Paricipation of 1988, Series B,
in the amount of $.4 mition. This series of Master Lease
certificates had interest rates ranging from 4.7 percent to 4.9
percent and matures semi-annually through September 1,
2003.

g5

+  Master Lease Certificates of Participation of 1998, Sertes A
in the amount of $22.1 million. This Master Lease certificate
evidences the State’s obligation to repay revolving loans
under a Revolving Credit Agreement, dated July 1, 1996
between Firstar Bank National Association {Trustee) aré'd the
Bank of America, as amended. This Master Lease certificate
shall bear interest at the rates provided for in the Revelving
Credit Agreement and matures on March 1, 2009.  The
baiance of this certificate of participation may include some
accrued interest that will be payable at the next sem;~annual
inferest payment date. ' : :

»  Master Lease Ceriificates of Participation of 1999, Series A,
in the amount of $5.1 million. This series of Master Lease
certificates have interest rates ranging from 3.5 percentto 3.9
percent and mature semi-annually through March 1, 2005.-

+  Master Lease Certificates of Participation of 1999, ‘Series B
(Taxable), in the amount of $7.8 milion. This series of
Master Lease cedificates have interest rates ranging frbm 5.5
percent to 5.6 percent and mature semi-annuaily thmugh
September 1, 2005.

+  Master Lease Certificates of Participation of 2000, Series A,
in the amount of $15.9 million. This series of Master Lease
certificates have interest rates ranging from 4.5 percentto 5.0
percent and mazufe semi-annually through Sept&mber 1,
2007,

+  Master Lease Certificates of Participation of 2000, Serses B
{Taxabig), in the amount of $8.3 million. This sertes..o_f
Master Lease certifi cates have interest rates ranging from 6.7
percent to 7.0 percent and mature semi-annually through
September 1, 2008.

+  Master Lease Certificates of Participation of 2002, Series A,
in the amount of $45.0 million. This series of Master Lease
certificates have inferest rates ranging from 2.25 percent to
3.75 percent and mature semi-annually through Septerﬁber
1, 2007,

The Third Amended and Restated Master Lease 1992-1 provides
that certain lease schedules to the facility can be terminated if the
State deposits with the Trustee an amount that is equal to he
outstanding amount of the lease schedule, or in amounts that are
sufficient to purchase investments that mature on dates and in
amounts to make the lease payments when due. At June 30,
2002, the State has deposited with the Trustee amounts, that
when iavested, will terminate lease schedules having. an
aggregate outstanding amount of $4.1 million. As a result of
terminating these lease schedules, the associated liabifity is
ramoved from the financial statements.
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F. 'Arbitrage Réﬁate'_

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires that governmental entities

- issuing tax-exempt debt subsequent to August 1986, calculate and
rebate arbitrage eamings io the federal government. Specifically,
the excess of the aggregated amount eamed on investments
purchased with bond proceeds over the amount that would have
‘been earned if the proceeds were invested at a rate equal to the

_ - bond yield, s to be rebated'to the federal government. As of June
30, 2602, no arbitfage rebaéefiability existed.

G. Mora! Obitgation I)ebt

Thmugh teg&siatton eﬂacted in 1994, zhe State authorized the
creation of local exposition districts. These districts are authorized
fo issue bonds for costs related to an exposition.center, and i the

' . State éetermmas that certain-conditions - are saiisﬁed the Siate

may have a meral obhgat:ora to appropﬁaie moneys fo make up
deficiencies in the. chstrzcts‘ rasewe funds tha’z secure up to $200
mitlion principal amount of bonds. To date, one such district has
“been created, and it has lss&ed $125.8 million of bonds that are
subject to the moral, obhga’czan Two other local exposmon d;str;cts
each have authority to issue $160. o milfion of revenue ohiigations
" that, sub;ect to the Secre%azy of Administration” 5 determmation that

certain cond:tzons have been met, coutd carry a moral obligation of
. the State.- Each of these districts have issued revenue obhgaﬂons
: that de nof s:arry the moral ahicgatlon cf tiwe State

Through Ieglslauon enacted n 1999, the State atzthonzed the
assuance of up to $170.0 million principal amount of bonds to
fi nance the development or redeveiopment of sites and: facilities to
“be used for pubhc schools, If ceftam conditions are satisfied, and
if a special debt service reserve fund is created for the bonds, the

96

State will provide a moral obligation pledge, which would _ré$toi‘e
the special debt reserve fund established for the bonds to an
amount not to exceed the maximum annual debt service on the
bonds. One bond issue of $33.3 million has been issued thai has
a special debt service reserve fund secured by the State’ ) moral
obligation.

H. Credit Agreements
Primary Government

The State has, as part of the working bank contract, aletter -of
credit agreement with the US Bank National Association under
which the Bank has agreed to provide to the State an open line of
credit in the armount of $50.0 million. The agreement provides for
advances in anticipation of bond issuance proceeds. As of June
30, 2002, $50.0 million was unused and available. '

The State has previedsty entered into a credit agre_e'rh_en't o
provide a line of credit for liquidity suppert for up to $1 10.0-m_il_l'ion
of general obligaticn' commarcial paper notes. The line of credit
expires in March, 2003, but is subject to annual renéw'al és
provided for in the credit agreement The cost of this line of credst
is .085 percent per year.

Also, the State has entered into a credit agreement with two banks
to provide a fine of cradit. for figuidity support for its transportatlon
revenue commercial paper program. The amount of the line of
credit is-$150.0 million: - This ling of credit expires in May, 2003,
but is subject to renewal as provided for in the credit agreemem
The cost of this line of credit is 0.160 percant per year.
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NOTE 12. LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
R : IN-S?_A’_LLM&N‘!’P_URCHASES '
The state leases ofﬁoe bunldmgs space and equspmem under g

var:ety of agreements that vary in-lease’ term many of which are
subject io appropr:az;cn from ihe State Legusiamre ta continue the

Lo iease commr:merzt I such funding, ‘ie., through iegxsiatwe

'_ appr{spnahon is' judged to be assured, and the lkelfhood ‘of
cancellation through exercise of the: fiscal funding clause is
) 'r\emote Ieases are consxdered noncanceiabe and repo:ted as
i '_ e;ther a captiai !ease ar an aparatmg iease

-.A Capltal i.eases

anary Govemment -

:Capitai ‘Jease comm;tments an" the . gévéénméntwwnde and

-';:aropnetary funds statements are reparted as liabiliies at lease
- inception. The reiated assets aiang with the deprecsatmn are also

'reported at that time, Lease payments are repoﬂed as a
; 'r_ed_uci;on af the !!abt lty_. : :

For capzta! Ieases in gavernmental funds “Other Fmancmg
"Sources - Cap:tal Lease Aoqu:smons" aad expendfmres are

recorcied at iease :nceptmn Lease payments are recorded as
- expendatures T '

' "The 'foltowing is an aéalysis of the g?ess minimum lease
paymems along with the present vaiue of the mmlmum lease

: payments as of June 30, 2902 for cap;tal eases {m thmssands}

S Governmenta! B_usiness«_type
Fiscal Year Activities ' Activities

2003 $ 8,530 3 5,488
2004 6,536 : 4,861
2008 3,221 3,874
2006 1,481 3,460
- 2007 1,083 - 3,325
2008 - 2012 1,803 20,935
2013 - 2017 464 4,022
Total minimum
future payments 23,008 45 864
Less: Execulory costs {58} b
Less: Interest (2,350 (8,185)
Present value of
net minimum

lease payments $ 20880 $ 37,778

 Assels acquired through capital leases are valued at the :lo@_eé'_of_

fair market value or the present value of minimum lease payments
at the inception of the lease. The following is an analysis of
capital assets recorded under capital leases as of June 30, 2{3{32
(m thousands) o

Governmental Busmess-type'

Activities Activities
Land and Land
" Improvements $ 376 % -
’ Ba_ziidings and L
Improvements 1,080 1,087
Machinery and -
Equipment 31,851 9,728
Less: Accumuiated o
Deprectatuon {11,769} {3,394)
Carrying Amount § 21518 3 7421

Master Lease Program
The. State estabhshed a faciity in 1992 that provides Iease_
pur(;hase ﬁnancmg for property and certain service items acqwred

by state’” agencies. This facility is the Third Amended and
Restated Master Lease between the State acting by and 2i1mugh .

- the Department of Administration and Firstar Bank. Nattcmalﬂ.

Assodiation. Lease purchase obligations under the Master Lease
are not general obligations of the State, but are payable from
apprqpri_atiorﬁs of State agencies participating in the Master 'Léasg
Program, subject to annual approprigtion. The -imérest
component of each lease/purchase payment is subject to a
separate determination. Pursuant to terms of the Master 'i_e_ase,
the Trustee for the facility issues parity Master Lease Certificates
of Participation that evidence proportionate interest of the owners
thereof int lease payments. ltems acquired and outstanding on
June 30, 2002 consisted of. -

Average Life
Balance Due (Weighted Term)
$100,424,929 3.3914 Years
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Component Unit ) o The foliowing is an analysis of the future minimum “rental
' _ ' ' payments due under operating ieases (in thousands):
Under the terms of a lease agreement, the University of '

Wisconsin Hespitals and Clinics Authority (the Hospital) leases Business- o
Governmental type Component

facilities which were occupied by the Hospital as of June, 1996

{see Note 1B to the financial staternents). The initial term of the * Figcal Year _Activities Activities Hnits .
lease. is 30 years to be renewed annually with automatic 2003 $ 41,115 $ 9583 $ 4!-;_353 _
extensions of one additional year on each July 1 until action is 2004 33,524 8,708 4,279
taken to stop the extensions. Included in the consideration for the 2005 25,648 6,802 4,208
lease is an amount equal fo the debt service during the term of 2006 20,935 5.678 3,966
the lease agreement on all outstanding bonds issued by the State 2007 18,856 3,747 3,363
for ‘the purpdse' 61‘ '_ﬁnahcing the -acquisition, mﬁ_étruc_ﬁon_ or ?ﬂ?:;:r: ::ase 45,954 14.280 6’_92.8
improvement of the leased facilities. Interest rates on'the related e
bonds 'ranée from 4.0 percent to 7.75 percent, with final maturities payments S 186032 228977 AL

due beginning in Aprii 2000 through Aprit 2022, Scheduled
principal and inferest payments through April 2022 are $32.7
million : : _ C. Installment Purchases
illion. :

The Siate has entered into instaliment purchase agreeméntsﬂ
The following is an analysis of the gross minimum instaliment
payments, along with the present value of the mminimum
instaliment payments, as of June 30, 2002 for instaliment
purchases {in thousands):

B. Operating Leases

Operéting leases, those leases not recorded as capital leases as
required by FASB Statement No. 13, are not recorded in the
statement of net assels. - These leases contain various renewal

opticns, the effect of which are reflected in the minimum lease o
. ) Govemme_ntal_

payments only if it is considered that the option wiil be exercised.
Certain other operating leases contain escalation clauses and Fiscal Year Activities
contingent rentals which are not included in the calculation of the '
future minimum Jease payments. - The State has adopted the 2003 $ 593
operating jease scheduled rent increase provisions of FASB 2004 409
Statement No. 13. Operating lease expendituresfexpenses are 2005 ' 318
recognized as incurred or paid over the lease term. ;ggﬁ 5‘;
Governmental and businesswbe activities rental expenses under Total minimum future payments ‘“‘“‘“‘“‘W
operating leases for Fiscal Year 2002 were $51.6 million. Of this Less: Interest (128)
amount, $51.1 milion relates fo minimum renial payments Present value of net minimum —_—
stipulated in lease agreements, 3$451 thousand relates fto instaliment payments [ 1,249
o T

contingent rentals, and $472 thousand relates to subrental
payments.

g8
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* NOTE 13. RETIREMENT PLAN -
’Fhe Wnsconsm Retlremnt System (WRS) was ¢stablished and is
'admmsstered by the ‘State .of Wisconsin to provide pension
“benefits for State and iocal g{}vammem public employees. - The
~WRS cons:sts of the ﬁxed retirement investment trust; the varigble
: retsrement mvestment trast and the police and fi refighters frust.

'Aitholzgh separated for acca;mtmg purposes, the assets of these
- trust funds can be used to pay benefits for any member of the

= .WRS arati are reparted a5 one perssaon plan

The WRS is consndered pari of the State of W:sconsm 5 ﬂnanaai
reporting entity. Cap;es of ﬁwe separately issued financial report
that mciudas fnancnal ‘statements and requnred supplementary
information for the year endsng December 31, 1999, may he
ehtamed by writing 10

Departmm of Employee Trust FLEI‘!GS
80t West Badgez Road '
. P.O.Box7931

Madison, Wl 53707-7931.

_ _T?le'separatély isslsed financial rep'orts for the years ended
-December 31, 2000 and 290! will be avai iable in Caiendar Year
2003,

'_Pian;Descf_ipﬁon S

- "The WRS, governed by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes, is

_-'a cost—shar;ng maEtlple—empioyer defined benefit pension plan. i

. provides “coverage ‘1o -all eligible State of Wisconsin, local

'gavemment and other pubfic employees. Any employee of a

partlclpatmg employer who is expected to work at least 600 hours

“per year for at least one year must be covered by the WRS. As of
" December 31, 2001, the number of participating employers was;

State Agencies 61
Cities 153
‘Counties 71
4™ Class Cifies 34
Villages 206
Towns 175
Schoot Districts 426
Wisconsin Technical College System Board Districts 16
Cooperative Educational Service Agencies 12
Other 1687

Total Employers

Fore employees beginning ;)artlczpatson on or after January 1 1980
and no ionger actively employed on or after April 24, 1998,
creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for
a retirement annuily. Participants'employe{f prior to 1980 and on
or after Apri 24, 1998 are immediately vested. Employees who

‘retire at or after age 65 (85 for proteciive eccupatlors emnloyees '

62 for elected officials and State executive participants) are
entitled to receive an unreduced retirement beneft. The factors '_
mﬂuenqng the benefit are: {1} final average earnings, (2 yeazs of
credstabﬁe semce and 3a fcrmu#a fac:tor

Final average earmings is the average of the patticipant's three
highest years' earnings. Creditable service .is the creditable
current - and prior service expressed in ‘years of decimal

“equivalents of partial years for which a participant recsives

o earnings and makes contributions as reqmred The: formuia factor' o

9%

_recognized in current operations.

isa standa!d perceﬂtage based on empioymeﬁt category

Empioyees may i'eﬁ%'e at age 55 (50 for protec;tive occupation
emptoyeeé) and receive reduced benefits. Employees terminating
covered -employment before becoming eligible for a retirement
benefit may withdraw their contributions and forfeit all rights to any
subsequen: benefits. The WRS also provzées death and dnsabalrty

: beneﬁts for employees.

Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

_ The ﬁnanciai statements of the WRS have been prepared in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, using
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and a full
accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basi_s'.a_f '
accounting, revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses’

 are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. Pian member

contributions. are recognized.in the period in which contributions -
are due. ﬁmpmyer contributions io the pian are arecogmzed when
due and the employer has made a formal cemmﬁment to pmvuﬁe
contributions. 'Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and :
payabte in accordance with the terms of the plan. :

All assets of the WRS are invested by the State of Wisconsin
Investment Board. The retirement fund assets consist of shares
in the variable refirement investment trust and the fixed retirement
investment trust. The variabie retirement investment frust
consists prlmarﬂy of equ:ty securities. The fixed retrement
investment trust is a balanced investment fund made up of fixed
income securities and equity securities. Shares in the fixed
retirement investiment trust are purchased as funds are made
available from retirement contributions and investment income,
and sold when funds for benefit payments and other expenses are
needed.

The assets of the fixed and variabie retirement investment trusts
are caried at fair vaiue with all market value adjustments
Investments are . revalued
monthly to current market value. The resulting valuation gains or
losses are recognized as income, although revenue has not been
realized through a market-place transaction. '
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The WRS does not have any investments {other than those
issued ‘or guaranteed by the U.S. Govermnment) in any one
orgamzaticm that represent 5.0 percent or more of pEan net
assets

State Cantnbut:ons Requ:red and Contnbutmn& Made

Coverad Siate employees in the GenagaEiTeacher category are
required by statute to contribute 5.0% of their saiary (3.9% for
Executives and Elected Officials, 3.8% for Protectwe Oocupatlons
with Bocial Securzty and 3.3% far Proteciive Occapatscns without
Sﬁcta! Secunty) to ‘the pEan ﬁmpieyers may make these
oontnbut:ons to ihe plan on behalf Qf empioyees :

Employefs_'are reqmred to contrlbute an -actuarially determined
amau_ni necesséry to fund the remaining projected cost of future
penefits; however, State legislation in 1998 prescribed a.$200
miflion contﬁbutson holzday for employers for the first time in the
pians hlsto;y State contributions made for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 2999 were as follows (in millions):

2001 2000 1989
Employer current service - $1229  §1247 $12186
Percent of payrolt | . A2% 4.86% 4.9%
Empioyer priof seivice $155 $04 $ 319
Percent.of payroii : - 05% 0.0% - . 25%
:Empioyee requured ©51400 81340 51242
. Percent of payroii : 4.8% 4.9% 50%
Beﬁeﬁt adjustment contrib. $51 $121 $17.6
Percent of payrol! o 0.2% 0.4% T%
Percent of Required
100% 100% 100%

Contributions

The WRS uses the "Entry Age Normal with Frozen Initial Liability”
actuarial method in establishing employer contribution rates.
Under this method, the unfunded ‘actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) is generally affected only by the monthly amortization
payments, compound interest, the added liability created by new
employer units, and any liabilities caused by changes in benefit
provisions. The UAAL is being amortized over a 40 year period
beginning January 1, 1890, However, perindically, the Employee
Trust Funds Board has reviewsd and, when appropriate, adjusted
the actuarial assum;&ﬁons used fo determine this liabiiity.
Changes in the assumptions may affect the UAAL, and the
resulting actuarial gains or losses are credited or charged to
employers’ unfunded liabiiity accounts.

Al actuarial gains or losses arising from the difference between
actual and assumed experience are reflected in the determination
of the normal cost.

100

As of June 30, 2002 and 2001, the WRS's unfunded actuarial
accrued liability was $2.0 billion and $2.1 billion, respectively.
These amounis are presented as Prior Service Comrib'ut_ipris
Receivable on the financial statements. New prior service
liabilities resulting from employers entering the WRS or increas’ing
thelr prior service coverage are recognized as contributiphs_'in'ihe
year service is granted and are added to the Prior Service
Contributions Receivable,  Employer contributions for  prior
service reduce the receivable. The receivable is increased as of
calendar year end with inferest at the assumed interest rate of 8
percent. ' R

Employer Pension Costs

The State's unfunded Hability as of June 30, 2002, was §707.0
million, or 35.1 percent of the total WRS unfunded liability of $2.0
biion. This liability is determined in accordance with ‘the
provisions of GASE Statement No. 27. The State’s unfunded
liability for prior service is recorded in the governmental ad&viti_esl _

NOTE 14. MILWAUKEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The Milwaukee Retirement Systems (MRS), consisting af_thg_-¢ity
of Miwaukes Refirement System and the Miwaukee Public
Schools Retirement System, is reported as an Investment Trust
Fund, MRS provides assets to the State of Wisconsin,
Department of Employee Trust Funds (DETF) for investing .in. ts
Fixed -Retirement - nvestment Trust (FRIT} and the 'Vaﬁab!e'
Retirernent . Investment Trust (VRIT), funds of the Wsconsm
Retirement System (WRS). ‘Parlicipation of the MRS.in the FRET
and VRIT is described in the DETF Administrative Code, C_ha_pter
10.12. The State of Wisconsin Ilnvestment Board' '.(SWi_B)
manages the FRIT and VRIT with oversight by a Board of
Trustees as authorized in Wis. Stat. 25.14 and 25.17. SWIB is
not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as
an investment company.

The investments of the FRIT and VRIT consist of a highly
diversified portfolio of securiies. Wis. Stat. 25.17(3){a) allow
investments in loans, securities and any other investments as
authorized by Wis. Stat. 62022  Permitted classes of
investments include bonds of governmental units or of private
comorations, foans secured by mortgages, preferred or common
stock, real properly and other investments not specifically
prohibited by statute. '

investments are revalued monthly to fair value, with unrealized
gains and losses reflegted in income.

Monthly, the DETF distribuies a pro-rats share of the total FRIT
and VRIT eamings less administrative expenses o the MRS
accounts. The MRS accounts are adjusted fo fair value and
gains/losses are recorded directly in the accounts per DETF
Administrative Code, Chapter 10.12(2).
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Nexther State statute, a iegat provision nor a legally bmdmg At June 30, 2002, the FRIT and VRIT held $56,084.6 miitién_-of
.guarantee exists fo support the value of shares. investments of which includes $2.335.7 milion of securities
lending collateral. The foliowing tables present investments of the
FRIT and VRIT at June 30, 2002, categorized in accordance with
the level of risk requirements of GASE Statement No. 3 {zn

At June_30, 2002, the FRET and VRIT held a number of
- nonnegotiable short-term certificates of deposit. The fair value of
these certificates of deposﬂ was approximately $65.4 miliion, a il of

mittions):
wmch was uncolfateraﬁtzed
F_Exed Retirement Inves_tment Trust:
: ' : Category Fair
1 .2 3 Value
‘Bonds . $ 66580 3 - s - $ 66580
Stocks . - 12,7239 - - 12,723.9
Repurchase Agreements g7.7 - - a7.7
Bankers Acceptances 284.1 - - 284.1
- Total . 3 19,7637 3 - 3 -~ 19,7637
Private Placemients g ' 3,530.0
| Limited Partnerships 2.598.4
- “Pooled Equities 15,401.9
Pooled Bonds _ ' 4,830.8
 Morigages ) . &85.8
“Real Estate Owned ~~ 4619
" Custodial Pooled Cash and Equivalents 605.5
tnvestments Heild by Broker Dea!e;s under Securities Loans: .
) Bonds_- oL - S . : 1,438.3
. Equities | g IR 760.1
L Secuﬁtzes Lend:ng Cash Coilaterai Pooled investments 505.8
| 5 50,5822
Variable Retirement Investment Trust:
Category Fair
1 2 3 Value
Bonds $ 815 8 - § - 5 61.5
. Stocks 24854 - - 24854
" Repurchase Agreements 44 . - 4.4
Bankers Acceplances 12.8 - - 12.9
Total $ 25842 % - 3 - 2,564.2
Limited Partnerships 2
Paooled Equities 2,7851
Pooled Cash and Equivalents 29.1
Investments Held by Broker Deaiers under Securities Loans:
Egquities 100.3
Securities Lending Cash Coliatersl Pooled Investments 235
o o . . . . 5 55004

1N
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The following schedule provides summary information by investment diassification for the FRIT at June 30, 2002 (in thousands).

Interest/Coupon Maturity
Classification Rates Dates Cost Fair Value
Bonds Variable and .1 to 254 /02 to 10/49 $ 10,700,778 $ 11,581,063
Common and Preferred Stock N/A N/A 32,889,031 28,885,884
Limited Partnerships N/A NiA 2,785,778 2,598,401
Morigages 8.77 to 12.25 8/04 to 6/22 £39,001 685,784
Real Estate Owned N/A N/A 396,580 461,912
" Financial Futures Contracts N/A N/A = &
Private Placements Variable and 5.95 t0 24.0 802 to 12/31 3,464 511 3,530,009
Total investments $ 50855677 $ 47,743,069
The following schedule provides summary information by investment classification for the VRIT at June 30, 2002 {in thousands):
interest/Coupon Maturity
Classification Rates Dates Cost Fair Value
Bonds N/A 9/02 to 8/08 $ 192 $ 196
Common and Preferred Stock N/A N/A 6,370,547 5,370,734
Limited Partnerships N/A N/A 173 174
Financial Futures Contracis N/A N/A e ) 2
Total Investments $ 6,370,912 $ 5,371,106

Significant financial data for the FRIT and VRIT for the year ended June 30, 2002 is presented below (in thousands):

Fixed Retirement Investment Trust
Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Fixed Retirement Invesiment Trust
Condensed Statement of Net Assels

As of June 30, 2002 For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
Assefs: Additions:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,361,036 Net Increase (Decrease ) in
Securities Lending Colfateral 2,233,869 Fair Value of Investments $ (3,639,238}
tnvestment Receivabies 1,369,394 Interest 768,257
investments, at Fair Value 47,743,069 Dividends 202,018
Other Assets 3,041 Securities Lending Income 71,426
Total Assets $ 52710409 Other 125,802
Totat Additions (2,471,732)
Liabilities:
Securities Lending Collateral Liability $ 2,233,869 Deductions:
Investment Payables 1,205,217 investment Expense 135372
Total Liabilities 3,439,086 Securities Lending Rebates and Feas 59,504
Net Withdrawals by Pool Participants 1,475,878
Net Assets Held in Trust of: _ Total Deductions 1,670,854
internatl Investment Pool Participants 49,221,514
Milwaukee Retirement Systems 49,809 Net Increase {Decrease) (4.142,586)
§ 49,271,323
- Net Assets Held in Trust for Pool Participants
Beginning of Year 53,413,908

End of Year $ 49,271,323
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Variable Retirement Investment Trust
Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variable Retirement Investment Trust
Condensed Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2002

Assets; : Additions:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 102,367 Net Increase (Decrease) in :
.- Securities Lending Collateral 101,784 Fair Value of lnvestmenis $  (1.020,302)
" investment Receivables 279,302 Interest 2,406
-~ Investments, at Fair Value 5,371,106 Dividends 33,870
. Total Assets . $ 5854559 Securities Lending Income 2784 -
_ ' : Total Additions (981,262)
Liabilities: e
Securities Lending Collateral Liability 3 101,784 Deductions: .
Investment Payables 285,831 investment Expense 11,827
. Total Liabilities : 387,618 Securities Lending Rebates and Fees 1,766 -
Ch e ' - Net Withdrawals by Poo! Participants 298,307
Net Assets Meld in Trust of Total Deductions 311,990
internal investment Poo! Participants 5,451,641 o
* Milwaukee Retirement Systems 15,303 Net Increase (Decrease) (1 ,293,_2'_5_2)

$ 5466944
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pool Paricipants

Beginning of Year 6,780,197
End of Year $ 5466944
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NOTE 15. G’THER POSTEMPLOYMENT
- BENEFITS

in addition o prmriding pension benefits, the State participates in
the Department of Emptoyae Trust Funds administered post
retirement life insurance ‘and health insurance benefit programs.
The State provides life and health insurance benefits for retired
employees in -accordance with .Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin
Statutes. o : C

.'Past retlrement life insurance is provzdecz to employees rettr;ng
: befora age 65:if they (1) have 20 years of cred:tabte service, and
{2) are eisgxbie for a retirement annuity. Thzs coverage is at the
employee’s expense {empioyee must pay the full premium} until
age 65 when reduced coverage is provided at no cost. Empioyees
raﬂring at.or after age 65 are immediately eligible for reduced
coverage at no cost. Beginning in the manth in which an insured
annurtant reaches age 85, premmms are no iongar cotlected and
'mverage is continued for life. - Approximately 12,500 State
annuitants currently qualify for coverage without premium. Post
retirémer;t life insurance is fully ’insufed by -an indepe'néent
insurance carier. Pfemmms are prefunded with employer paid
prem;ums during the empioyees active career. The amount of
premiums is determined by the insurer. ‘The accrued liability and
assets specifically related o post employment benefits could not
pe determined. '

~.In accordance with _'Chabter 40, W_«si:o;‘usin'Statutes, the State also
provides that employees retiing and beginning an immediate
“annuity ‘are eligible for conversion of unused sick leave to post
retirernent health inss.nr_ancé. At the time of eligibility for an
irrimediate, “annuity or . employee’s 'death, that empioyee's
accumulated unused sick leave balance may be converied at the
employee's current rate of pay to credits for the payment of health
insurance premiums for the employee or the employee's surviving
dapéradents. The proegram also provides partial matching of sick
leave accumulation depending on years of service and
employment category. Health insurance premiums are paid on the
employee, or employee's -depenﬁents behalf, untii the sick leave
conversion credits are exhausted. At that time, the employee has
the opfion to continue coverage by paying the total cost of the
premiums. Approximately 8,868 annuitants are currently receiving
health insurance coverage through sick leave conversion credits,
Accumulated sick ieavé“canversion is prefunded based on an
aciuarially determined percentage of payroll. The actuarial
valuation is based on the entry age actuarial cost method.

Significant actuarial assumptions include an 8 percent assumed
interest rate, 4.5 percent assumed annual salary growth, and an
average sick leave accumutation of 6.4 days per year for non-
University employees and 7.4 days per year for University
employess. The assets and reserves of the sick leave conversion
program are accounted for in a fiduciary fund. The accrued
liability for the post retirement heaith insurance benefits at
December 31, 2001, determined through an actuarial valuation
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performed on that date, was $1,2088 million. The prog'ram's
assets on that date were $745.0 milion. The unfunded labniriy
was $463.7 milion,

Assets of the life insurance and health insurance benefit pregrarris
are valued at fair value. ’

The Siate's postempioyment life and health insurance required
and actual coniriputions totaled $3.5 million and $78.3 millior,
respectively, during the calendar year ended December 31, 2001,
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iNSHRANCE FUNDS
8 anary Govemmerzt

:.' B "A Local Govemment ?roperty insurance Fund

K :Created by the Lagxslature in: 1911 the purpose of the Local
o Govemment P;’operty insurance Fund is 1o prowde pmper&y

msurance ccverage to tax—sup;}oned tocal government units such

. as cauntxes towns, v;liages cmes -schoopl dastrlcts aad itbrary
boards,: Property msured mchdes govemmant buﬂdmgs, schools
"___ilbraﬂes and motor: vehscies ‘Coverage is available onan optsonai
Diasis.” As of: June 30, 2002 the Locai Government” Property

. insurance Fund msufed 1,183 local governmental units. - The total

amount of insurance in for{:e as of ,sune 30, 2092 was $30.0
bslhon '

"' Vafuaf:on of Casb Equalents and Jnvestments Alé mvesmems

Lef the L.ocal Gavemment Pmperty insurance Fund are managed

by the Staie of W‘scensan investment Board; as d;scussed in Note
'4»3 o the ﬁnam:sal statements At June 30, 2002, the fund had

" $12.0 million of sharesin the State Investment F&nd ‘which are

: conszderecf cash equavalems and $15.5 mﬂhnn of hngh grade
lcng-!erm ﬁxed income obixgatlens

. 'Premiumx Uneamed premium' reporteci as d'eferrad' revenue
repzesents the: daﬂy pro1ata; pomon ‘of premium written- which is

Y applicable” to the- uraexprred terms of the msuranoe poi;cxes i

'-force Pohc:es are geﬂeraliy wnttera for annuai terms. '

Unpa:d Ciazms Liab:!:tfes - The LccaE Govemment Properiy

-32’!511%’&1‘306 Fund estahtsshes future benefts and loss taabﬁmas
s based on estamates of the uftamaie cost of claims (mcludmg future

clalm adjustmans: expenses) thai have been reported ‘but not

S " settled; and of claims that have been incurred but not reporied.

'.Estlmated amcsurats of :emsurance recoverable on unpaid claims

B :are deducted from the liability for unpaid claims.’ Claims labilities

" are recomputed perindically fo produce current estimates ‘that
. ‘seflect Tecent settlements, claim fraquency, and other economic
factors. Adjustments to future benefits and loss liabilities are
charged or credited fo expersse m the perrods in which they are
made.

“Folicy ACquisi%ion Costs - Since the Local Government Property
Insurance 'Fana has no ‘marketing staff and incurs no ‘sales
_cammlssmns ‘acquisition f.:osts are mmimai and chargeé to
'.ape;atagns as incurred.

Premium Deficiency ~ Invesiment income is considered in
“determining whether a premium deficiency exists. No premiumn
deficiency existed at June 30, 2002

Reinsurance - The Local Government Property Insurance Fund
uses reinsurance agreements to reduce iis exposure to lamge
losses on all types of insured events. Reinsurance permits
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recovery of a portion of losses fram reinsurers, although At &c_:'es
not discharge the primary Habifity of the fund as direct insurer of
the risks reinsured. The fund does not report reinsured risks as
liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be ‘covered
by remsurers As of June 30, 2002 the fund had $240 million m‘ '

per occurrence ‘excess of loss reinsurance in force wzth a%2:0

miflion- combined single lmit retention for each occurrenoe ‘and:
an annual aggregate reinsurance contract with a $12.0 mziiaon’
annuaj aggregate retention plus a per claim retention of :$10

thousand once the aggregate is met, as respects occursersces for -
Premium ceded to reinsurers’ durmg
the fiscal year ‘amounted to $3.5 million. Reinsurance Eoss and

the term of the agreemer;t

adjusting expense recoveries eamned for the year amoumed to S 2 e
mz!tion T

Unpald Claims Liabilities
As dtscussed above the Local Government Property Insu;ance' :

Fund establishes a hiability for both reported and unrepoﬂed'
insured events, which includes estimates of both future payments_ :

of losses and related claim adjustment expenses.. The fsilomng. '

represents changes in those aggregate liabilities for: the fund- '
dursng the past two ﬁsca years (in thousands). :
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2001 2002

" Unpaid claims and claim adjustment

expenses at begmmng of the year $11,880 $14.436

Less: Remsurance recoverable (8.486) (B,087)
Net unpald loss !sabzhty at begmnmg
of year 3,424 8,339
incurre{f ciacms and clalm adjustment
expenses :
va:s;on for msured events of the :
Current year 13,050 13,858
Increase (decmase) in ;)rovssuon for
insured events of prior years {675) 301
Total incurred claims and claim
ad;’ustment expenses 12,375 14,158
Payments
~ Claims and ciaim ad;ustment
expenses attributable to insured
events of the current year - 5,060 7.278
Claims and claim adjustment
expenses atiributable to insured
events prior years 2,400 8 153
Totai payments 7,460 15,431
‘Net unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses at e_nd_ of year 8,336 7,067
" Reinsurance recoverable 6.097 4,706
Total unpaid claims and ¢laim
' $14.436 311,773

adjustment? expenses

Trend information

Historical trend information showing revenue and claims
deveiopment information is presented in the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance June 30, 2002 financial statements.
Copies of these statements may be requested from:

Office of the Commigsioner of Insurance
121 East Wilson Street
Madison, Wisconsin 53702
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B, State Life Insurance Fund

The State Life Insurance Fund was created under Chapter 607,
Wisconsin Statites, to offer life insurance to residents of
Wisconsin in a manner similar fo private insurers. Thig ‘fund
functions much like 2 mutual life insurance company arﬁd is
subject to the same reguiatory requirements as any fife insurance
company licensed to operate in Wisconsin.

Premiums are reported as eamed when due. Benefits and
expenses are associated with eamed premiums so as to-reéﬁﬁ_ in
recognition of profitls over the life of the contracts.’ '3-_Th_isé
association is accomplished by means of the provision for
liabilities for future benefits and the amortization of acquisition
costs.

The costs of policy issuance and underwriting, ali of which vary
with, and are primarily related to, the production of new busiﬁes}s,
have been deferred. These deferred acguisition costs aré
amortized over & forly vear peried, considered re;)reseﬁtéiiva of
the life of the contract. The amortization is in proportion to the
ratio of annual in-force business 1o the amount of business
issued. Such anticipated in-force business was estimated using
similar assumptions to those used for computing liabilities for
future policy benefits.

Deferred Acquisition Cost Assumptions

issue Interest Lapse _

Years Rate Rata Mortality
1813-1966 3.0% 2.0% None
1967-1976 3.0 20 None
1977-1885 44 29 None
1986-1994 5.0 20 None
1985+ 4.0 2.0 None

The State Life Insurance Fund does net pay commissions nor
does it incur agent expenses,
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Future benefits and loss lisbilities have been computed by the net
level premium method based upon estimated future investment
vield and mortality. The composition of Habilities and the more
material assumptions pertinent thereto are presented below (in
thousarads) :

Ordinary Life  Amount of

Issue insurance Policy
Year in Force Liability
19131966 0§ 14133 0§ g0
1967-1878 ' 40,471 15,382
1977-1988 886, 1 b2 19,660
1988-1984 55,978 5672
1695+ 29,290 2,111
$ 228024 $ 51852
Bases of Assumptions

Issue interest
Year Rate Mortality
19131966  3.0%  American Experience, ANB*
1967-1976 30 1958 CSO, ALB, Unisex

4.0 1958 £SO, ALB, Femaie Setback

1977-1985
- L Byears |

1989 £SO, ALB, Aggregate

1980 CSO, ALE, Aggregate

1986-1994 5.0
1995+ 4.0

* Age Last Birthday

All of the State Life Insurance Fund's ordinary life insurance in
force is participating. This fund is required by statute to maintain
surplus at a level between 7 percent and 10 percent of statutory
admitted assets as far as practicably possible. All excess surplus
is to be retumed to the policyholders in the form of policyholder
dividends, Policyholder dividends are declared each year in order
o achieve the required level of surplus.

The statutory assets at December 31, 2001 were $75.6 million
and the statutory capital and surplus were $6.1 million, and the
capital and surplus at June 30, 2002 was $7.4 million.
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C. Patients Compensation Fund

The Patients Compensation Fund was created in 1875 for 'the
purpose of providing excess medical malpractice msuranoe for
health care providers in the state. The Patients Compensatlon
Fund pays that portion of a medical maipractice claim which is in
excass of the legat primary insurance limit prescribed under law,

or the maximum liability limit for which the health promder is
instred, whichever fimit is greater. Most health care ;}mvnders
permanently practicing or operating in the State of Wisconsin are
required to pay Patients Compensation Fund operating fees Resk
of Eass ;s retained by the fund. :

The Future Benefits and Loss Liability Account includes individual
case estimates for reporied losses and estimates for incurred but
not reported losses based upon the projected ultimate josses.
individual case estimates of the liability for reported losses and
net io_sses paid from inception of the Patients Compensation Fund
are deducted from the projected ultimate less Habilities to
deteri’nine the iiability for incurred but not reported losses as of
June 30, 2002 as follows (in thousands):

Projected uitimate loss Hability $ 1,302,384

Less: Net ioss paid from inception {518,240}
Less: Liability for reported losses (35,421)
Liability for incurred but not reported losses $

748,723

The Future Benefits and Loss Liability Account also includes a
pravision for the estimated future payment of the costs to settle
claims.  These ultimate loss adjustment expenses as of June 30,
2062 are estimated at 5.25 percent of the projected uitimate loss
iisbilities. The loss reserves are actuarially determined. The I_éss
adiustment expenses paid from the inception of the Patients
Compensation Fund are deducted from the projected ultimate
ioss adjustment expenses provision to defermine the lability for
loss adjiustment expenses as of June 30, 2002 as follows (in
thousands).

Projected uitimate loss adjustment expense

Hability $ 68,375
Less: Loss adjustment expense paid from

inceplion {33,525)
Liability for loss adjusiment expense $ 34,850

The uncertainties inherent in projecting the frequency and sevamy
of large claims because of the Patients Compensataon Fund's
unlimited liability coverage, and extendsd reporting and
settlenant periods, makes it fikely that the amounts ultimately
paid will diffar from the recorded estimated liabilities. These
differences cannot be quantified.
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' The ‘lisbility for reported losses, liability for incurred but not The future benefits and loss liabilities include loss reserves

L :eportéd losses, and Jiability ‘for loss. adjustment expeﬁsé -are reflecting the accumulation of losses reported but not patct przor 10
maintained on a present va%ue basis with the mfference fmm ik the close of the accounting period and estimates of incurred but
value bamg reponed as a contra account 1o the joss reserve unreporied iosses, Loss reserves are actuarially determined and
habuiutzes The loss resezve hab:imes are dlscounted oniy to the ‘are based on historical patterns of claim payments and represent .
extent that they are mafohed by cash and anvesteci assets S all the estlmated ‘ultimate cost of settimg claims incurred pr&ar 1o

logs l;abﬂznes are d;scounted the discounted loss Itablflty would _June 30. " Due fo the inherent uncertainties in the reservmg
: be as foliaws as ef Jur;e 30 2002 {in fhausands) - S ' process, Ioss reserves as computed may not reflect the actual

_payments ultimately to be made. The methods for making such_
. estimates " and for e5tabitshmg the resulting reserves are

Esﬂmatefi unpald !oss habn mes G s 784144 - icontinually reviewed, and any adjustments are ref!ected in’
_ﬁstamateci unpaid loss adjusimant exgense ' 34,850 o _earnmgs cufrently TR
| Total estimated Joss liabifities - = . - 818904 - R
Less; Amount representsng mterest ' 239 945 The fo!iowing represents changes in the Future Benefit and Loss
E):soo uratecf Ioss Iaabslstle s m}“g“ Lnabalzty account balances for the prior two fiscal years (m
' o T - theusands) o
L o - 2001 20027
- 'The future beneﬁts and iass ilab;htzes are contmualiy rewewecé as - L : IR
~ adjustments’ to ‘these liabifities beoome necessary. - Such Balance, beginning of year $ 13.414 $ 17,790
. ‘adjustments are reﬂecied in current operations. Because of the S
. “changes in these ‘estimates, the benefit expense for the fiscal ‘Incurred related to: e
year is not necessarzly indicative of the ioss expenenoe for the Current year 57,688 75,575
year . : . . N o Prlaryaafs _ {3,010} .(7_,-576}
- : ’ - Total lncurred 54,678 67,880
- D. Heaith insurance Rlsk Sharmg Pian o
: Paid re_tated to: TR
“ The Heatth Insurance Risk Sharmg Plan Fund was estabilsheci in o Cumentyear - . 40212 -'B0,B76 -
'_ "1980 to provzde major medical _and Medicare supplemental Prior years 10,090 9,617,
.insurance for persons unable to obtain this insurance in the - Total Paid 50,302 70,493 .

- private market or who otherwise qualify for efigibility under Section Balance, end of year 3 17.790 $ 15, 295

149,12, Wis. Stats. . The Health Insurance Risk Sharing Plan is

" funded- primarily by premrums ‘paid by insureds of the plan,

assessments made to participating insurers, reduction of provider

. -payments rates, and generai purpose revenue from the State of
: W;sconsm Co

The Future Benefits and Loss Liability Account aisc in_ciudes a
reserve for loss adjustment costs o be incurred in settiement of
the claims provided for in the loss reserves.

The financial statements of the Mealth Insurance Rigk Sharing
Plan fund are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
-acceuntmg pnnc:pies for govemments as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Premiums are
recognized as revenues over the terms of the insurance policies,
_and a lability for unearned premiums is established to reflect
_premiums received appiicabie' to subéeqileat acmuniing periods.
Participating insurers are assessed gvery six months, and
revenue is recognized in the period covered by the assessments.
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GComponent Units

E. Wisconsin Heaith Care Liability Insurance
Plan :

The Wisconsin Health Care Liability Insurance Plan (the Plan} is a
statutory unincorporated association established by rule of the
Commissioner of _tnsu;énce of the State of Wisconsin as
mandated by the State of Wisconsin legisiature. The Plan
p_révidés health care liability insurance and liability coverages
normally .incidental fo health care liability insurance to- eligible
?_\éalth;'care providers in the State of Wisconsin .caliing for
paymeét of premium'prios_ fo the effective date of the policy. Al
insurers authorized to write personal injury Hability insurance in
the State of Wisconsin, with certain minor exceptions, are
required to be members of the Plan.

The Pian genesates its premium wrilten revenue by seliing
medical malpractice insurance.  Rates are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles.  The
rates are set so that the Plan will be self-supporting. Profit is not
the intent of the Plan.

Since the inception of the Plan in 1975, the health care liability
coverage limits have increased from $200 thousand per
sccurrence and $600 thousand annual aggregate to the current
limits of $1.0 million per occurrence and $3.0 million annual
‘aggregate effective July 1, 1998, A general liability coverage is
also available to patticipating health care providers with fimits of
$1.0 million per cceurrence and $3.0 million annual -aggregate
effective July 1, 1980. The Plan is not covered under any
 reinsurance contracts.

in the event that sufficient funds are not available for the sound
financiai operation of the Plan, all members shall, on a temporary
basis, contribute 1o the financiai needs of the Plan. Members
shall participate in the contributions in the proportion of their
respective premiums to the aggregate premioms written by all
members of the Plan. Such assessments shall be recouped by
rate  increases applied prospectively. There were no
assessments for the year ended December 31, 2001,

The future benefits and loss Fability includes amounts determined
from individual reported losses (case reserves) and an amount,
based on past experience, for losses incurred but not reported.
Such [fiabilities are necessarily based on estimates and, while
management believes that the amounts are adequate, the
ultimate liability will differ from the amounis provided. The
methods for meking such estimates and for estabiishing the
resulting Hability are annually reviewed, and any adjustmenis are
refiected in imcome currently.  Specific account balances as of
December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001, are as follows {in
thousands):

12

2000 2001

Balance at January 1
incurred related to:

$ 102,030 § 84,028

Current year 4916 4,41 3
Prior years (19,858)  (19.783)
Total Incurred (14,942)  (15.370)
Paid refated to: '
Current year 101 68
Prior years 2,959 1,378 -
Total paid 3,060 1,445

Balance at December 31 $ 84028 § 67.212

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events of prior
years, the provisions for losses and loss adjusiment expenses
were decreased as indicated in the table above. Also, because of
the significant length of time between the date these type of
losses are reported and paid, these changes were greatér than
actual losses incurred for the current year, causing negatWe
incurred fosses. s



'State bf Wiséansin Notes to The Financial Statements

: : NOTE 19 SEGMENT !NFORMATION AND CO?@DENSED FINANCIAL DATA
B Primary chemment

> The S‘Eate issues revenue bands to finance the Leveraged Loan Program, which is accounted for as part of the Environmental lmprovement
_ Fund. !nvestors in 1haae bonds rely solely on the revenue generated within the Leveraged Loan Program. Assets of this program are used

.;}rtmaruy for loans for Wisconsin municipal waste water projects. Condensed financial statement information of the Leveraged Loan Program
-as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002 is pa’esented below {in thousands):

BEs _'Conde_'n_s_ed_ Balance Sheet .

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
o in Fund Equity :
Assets: _ .
Current Assets % 175,372 Operating Revenues (Expenses): :
© Other Assets . 842 407 Loan Interest $ 16,973
' '"_rotai AssétS' ' L 817779 Interest Expense (32.426)
: Other Operating Expenses (2052)
L|ab;|stres _ o : . O_perat_ing income (Loss) (18,504)
" Dueto Othér Funds S ) s 1.987 Nonop_e'r_atmg Ravenues (Expenses): SR
) Othef Current Liabifities {inciudmg : Inve_g tment *‘*’1°°‘T*e 15’.116 e
{ . Current Portion of Long-term Debt) s 38,395 Capital Contributions 12,808 -
" Noncurrent Liabilties = ' 626,713 Change in Fund Equity 9419
Total Liabiliies .~ - 667,005 Beginning Fund Equity 81,264
T | ——————— - Ending Fund Equity 3 156,684 -
‘Fund Equity:. . -~ - s o R S
Restricted : B 150,684 Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
Total Fund Equity - =~ . 150,684 oL
R R PP E R : R Net Cash Provided (Used) by :
 Total Liabilifies and Fund Equity $ 817,779 Operating Activities $ (2,037}
T R o - Noncapital Financing Activities 82,165
' e Investing Activities 12,964
Net increase (Decrease) 63,093
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivaienis 103,880
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 167,072
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NOTE 20. COMPONENT UNITS — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Significant financial data for the State's four component units for the year ended December 31, 2001, May 31, 2002, or June 30, 2002 is
presented bejow (in thousands):

Wisconsin Housiag Wisconsin Un'ivérs_sity of Badger

and Economic Health Care Wisconsin Tobacto Asset
Development Liability Hospitals and  Securitization
Authority Insurance Plan  Clinics Authoriiy Corporation Total
Condensed Balance Sheet
Assets: ' ' .
Cash, Investments and Other Assets $ 2,802801 $ 12251 $ 270,604 $ 293,970 $ 3,488,906
Due from Primary Government 178 - 2,397 423 2,995
Capital Assets, Net 22272 - 189,822 - 222,084
Total Assets $§ 2,828 240 $ 122531 $ 472,823 $ 204,383 $ 3,714,995
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other
Current Liabilities $§ 151620 $ 40,997 $ 49,085 $ 4,078 § 245751
Due to Primary Government 19 14 2,068 - 2,101
Long}_tem‘a Liabilities {Current and
Noncurrent Portions) 2,322,521 67,212 135,052 1,567,345 4,082,129 -
Total Liabilities 2,474,160 108,223 186,174 1,671,423 4,339,980
Fund Equity: . S
Invested in Capital, Net of Related Debt R - 67,650 - 67,550
Restricted 187,301 - 3,863 276,322 467 586
Unrestricted 163,788 14,307 215,136 {1,553,352) (1,160,121)
Total Fund Equity 351,088 14,307 286,649 (1,277,030) {624,985)
Totat Liabilities and Fund Equity $ 2825248 $ 122,531 5 472823 $ 294,383 $ 3,714,995

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity

Program Expenses:

Depreciation 3 3009 3 - $ 19,049 $ - 3 23,048
Transfers to Primary Government - - 275 - 275
Other 270,537 19,650 462,939 1,277,242 2,030,368

Total Program Expenses 274 536 19,650 482 263 1,277,242 2,053,691

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services 149,785 13,99 502,564 - 666,350
Operating Grants and Contributions 123,120 - - - 123,120
Total Program Revernues 272,916 13,891 502,564 - 789470

Net Program Revenue/{Expense) (1,821) {5,659) 20,301 {1,277,242) (1,264,221

General Revenues:

tnterest and trvestment Earmings 28,446 - 2,254 212 30,812
Change in Fund Equily 26,825 (5.659) 22,555 {(1,277.030) (1,233,309
Fung Equity, Beginning of Year 324 264 18,966 264,004 - 808,324
Fund Equity, End of Year 8 351,089 3 14,307 3 286,649 $ (1,277.030) 8§ (8240985
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NOTE 21. RESTATEMENTS OF BEGINNING FUND BALANCE/FUND EQUITY/NET ASSETS AND

OTHER CHANGES

During Fiscal Year 2002, the State implemented the following
standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB}:

* GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements -~ and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments

* GASE Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for Public Colleges
and Universities : : _

» GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financlal Statements - and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments: Omnibus

* GASE Staternent No. 3B, Cerfain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures

GASB Statement No. 34, as amended by Statement No. 37,
establishes new financial reporting standards for state and local
governments. This statement's requirements represent a
significant change in the financial reporting model used by state
governments, including statement formats and changes in fund
types. As a result, fund reclassifications and adjustments to the
fund equities reported in the prior year financial statements were
required. In addition to fund financial statements, Staternent No.
34 requires governments to report government-wide financial
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statements, prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and
the economic resources measurement focus, and to present a
Management Discussion gnd Analysis (MD&A).

Statement No. 35 establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards for public colieges and universities within the financial
reporting guidelines of Staterment No. 34. The University of
Wisconsin Syster, reported as an enterprise fund, adopted the
requirements of Statement No. 35.

Statement No. 38 requires ceriain note disciosures at the time
Statement No. 34 is implemented.

The provisions of these new standards have heen incorporated
into the Fiscal Year 2002 financial statements and notes.

The reconciliations that foliow summarize changes to the end-of-
year fund equities as reported in the 2001 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report to the beginning-of-year fund balancesffund
equities/net assets reported for Fiscal Year 2002 (in thousands).
These reconciltations mclude reclassifications and adjustments
necessary to impiement the new standards discussed above.
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" A. Fund Statements — Governmental Funds

Major Funds Nonmajor Fotal
General Transportation Funds Governmental
Ending fund balances as reported in the 2001
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report:
General . $ (1,214, 848) $ - s -
Special Revenue - Transportation - : 345658 -
“Qther S;aeaaf Revenue IR - - {84,978)
- DebtService | - - 9,155
| Capital Projects -~ . - - - - (305,865)
‘Expendable Trust R - - 2,986,399 .
S Totals o {1,214,848) 345,658 2,604,711 $ 1735521
GASBE 34 fund struc%ure reclassifications:
Expendable Trust to Special Revenus:
Children’s Trust - - - -
Expendable. ‘I‘rust to ?ensaon and QOther Employee
Benefits Tfust . ‘
Accumuiated chk Leave - - (1,899 (1,899)
Empiayee Reimbursement Aooo&nts - - (1.490) (1,490)
Life insurance . - - (247 247y
Deferred Compens_aﬁon i - - {1,148,099) {1,148,099)
Expendable Trustto Private Purpose Trust! .
Unclaimed Prﬁpedy Program - - (20.674) {20,674)
-Special Death Benefits -~ - - - (1,280) {1,280}
Expendable Trust to Permanent.
Common School Income (included in Common
*School) N - - - -
Nonexpendabie Trust to Permanent IR
-Agriculturai Coliege - - 305 308.
Common School _ - - 451,230 451,230
Normal Schooi - = 19,682 19,582
University - - - 234 234
Historical Society : - - . 11,368 11,366
Benevolent - - 14 14
Expendable Trust to Enterprise:
Unemployment Insurance Reserve . o (1,805,033 (1,805,033
(1,214,848) 345658 108,720 {760.470)
Less: Capital assets removed from Nonexpendable
Trusi Funds — - (635) {635)
: (1,214,848) 345,658 108,085 (781,105)
Qther fund structure reclassifications:
Printing and Other Services (791} - - {791)
Prior Period Adjustments:..
Recognition of expenditures for county and
municipal contract payments {60,366} - - (80,366}
Cotrection of the cancelled draft liability
reported in the General Fund {12,467} - o (12,467}
Reclassification of notes payable recorded through
the Capital Improvement Fund (67.760) (87,760
Qther adjustments of assets and liabilities as of
June 3¢, 2001 o 2,835 {1,174) 2,285 4 DA4B
Beginning Fund Balances as reported in the 2002 ' o
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report $ {1,285 537) $ 344 4584 $ 428610 $  (898,443)
Effect of prior period adjustments on the amount
of net change in fund balances of the
2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report § (67425 $ (1,174 3 185,806 § 117,297

i
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B. Fund Statements - Proprietary Funds

Major Funds

Patients

Compensation Improvement

Repayment

Veterans
Mortgage University of Unempioyment
Loan Wisconsin Insurance

System Reserve Funds

Nonmajor

Total
Enterprise

internal
Services
Funds

Ending fund equity as
reported in the 2001
Comprehensive
Financial Report $ 28461

GASE 34 fund structure
reciassifications:

Enterprise to Private-
Purpose Trust:
Tuition Trust o
College Savings
‘Program Trust -
Expendable Trust to
Enterprise:
- Unemployment
. -insurance -
University of Wisconsin
System to Enterprise -

Unemployment Insurance
Fund adjustments for
GASB Statement No. 34 -

University of Wisconsin
System adjustments
for GASB Statements
No. 34 and 35:
Report Accumulated .
Depreciation -
Exclude liability for general
obligation debt funded by
general purpose revenues
reported by governmental
activities rather than by
enterprise fund -
Other -

Other fund structure
reclagsifications:
Portions of internal Servicas
Funds to General Fund -

Prior Periog Adjustments
of assets and

as of June 30, 2001 (187

$ 824,625

i

$ 82284 5 - 8 ~  $368,471

786

(31)

1,805,033 —~

~ 4,008,905 - -

6,723 -

- {1,492 450) - -

- 745,589 - -
- 8,641 - -

1,428 (30.618) - {15,372}

$1,303,841

786

@1

1,805,033

4,008,005

6.723

{1,492.450)

745,589
8,641

{47,605

$ 5738

791

(60)

Fund equity July 1,

2001 as rostated $ 28273

$ 80856 $3240068 § 1811756  §$353853

56330432

$ 6469

Effect of prior period
adjustments on the
amount of net change
fund equity of Fiscal

Year 2001 $ {187)

$ (1428 § o 3 0 56824
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€. Fund Statements — Fiduciary Fur_ids

Pension

and Other Private-
Employee Investment Purpose Total
Benefit Trust Trust Trust Fiduciary .
Fund Balances, June 30, 2001 — As reported in the 2001 o
Compréhensive Annual Financial Report: $ 80,550,827 § 3901225 § - $ 64452152
From Expandabie Trust Funds Statements o
- _Accumuiated Sick Leave . 1,899 - - 1,899
~Employee Relmbursemenz Accoants 1,480 - - 1,480
* LifeInsurance . 247 - - 247
- Deferred Comp_ensatio_n 1,148,099 . - 1 148 099 ’
Unclaimed Property Program - - 20,674 20,674
Special Death Benefits - o 1,280 1,280
From Enterprise Funds: .
Tuition Trust - ' - - (786} (786)
Coilege Savmgs Prog ram Trust - . 31 31
-Accrued laabuilty ad;ustments for GASB Statement No. 34: s
Accumulated Sick Leave ' {378.,500) - - {378,500}
Unclaimed Property Program - - 7,912 7912
Tuition Trust - - 9,697 9,697 -
College Savings Program Trust - - 12,496 12,496
Other adjustments of assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2001 (4,041) 3,520 {117} {638)
Net assets July 1, 2001 as restated $ 61320120  $ 3904745 '$ 51188 § 65276053
Effect of prior period adjustments on the amount of net increase .
in net assets of Fiscal Year 2001 3 4,041y % 3520 % am $ {638)
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NOTE 22. LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

A. Litigation and Contingencies

The State is a defendant in various Ee_gél proceedings pertaining
to matters incidental o the performance of routine governmental
operations.

Claims and Judgments Reported in Governmental Activities

" The State aci:rues Habilities related to legal proceedings, if a loss
is probable and reasonably estimable. Such losses, totaling $2.0
million on June 30, 2002 reported in the govemmental activities,
are discussed below:

~ Lifigations - The Department of Health and Family Services is
involved in various legal . proceedings where the ultimate
disposition is estimated at $.3 million.

- Qther Claims - Work Injury Supplemental Benefits - The Work
Injury - Supplemental Beneftt - Fund, administered by the
Bepartment of Workforce Development, provides compensatory
payments to survivors of fatally injured employees or disabled

employees with work-related injuries. The lability for annuities to

: be paid fo the above mdwnduais totaled $1.7 million at June 30,

2002

'- Other Cialms, Judgmenzs and Conhngenmes :

The State is aiso named as @ party in other legal proceedings
where the ultimate disposition and consequence are not presently
determiné_bie. The potential lability amount relating to an
unfavorable outcome for certain of these proceedings could
impact the State by approximately $3.0 million. However, the
ultimate dispositions and consequences of any single legal
praceeding or ali legal proceedings collectively should not have a
material adverse effect on the State's financial position, except as
noted below.

Corporate Tax Measured by Interest from U.S. Securities - In this
corporate franchise tax case, American Family Mutual Insurance
Company and American Standard Insurance Company sought
refunds of taxes paid that were measured by U.S. interest,

Federal law prohibits an income tax on U.S. interest, but allows a
non-giscriminatory franchise tax measured on U.8. interest. The
insurance companies argued that because bonds authorized by
the State for housing and development were exempt from State
taxes, that the franchise tax was discriminatory, The Siate had
herstofore held that the exemption applied only to direct State
taxes and had uniformly included interest on the State authorized
bonds in the franchise tax measure. The Wisconsin Tax Appeals
Commission and the County Circuit Court upheld the State.

e

The Ceurt of Appeals, District IV, reversed the decisions. The
Supreme Court reversed the Court of Appeals. The taxpéyers
maintain that the decision is not applicable to 1993 and 1984,
The State maintains the principles of the decision are applicable
{0 the subsequent years.

Due to the uncertainty in prediciing the outcome, a liability has not
been recorded as of June 30, 2002

Federal Pension income — The 1884-1988 period seftlements with
approximately 3,200 military retirees and 14,000 civilian refirees,
triggered by the United States Supreme Court ruling in Davis v,
Michigan Depariment of the Treasury are essentially completed,
The Davis case had held that a state government violates the
intergovernmental tax immunity clause when it provided for
taxation of federal pension benefits. Subsegquent litigation with
other refirces on a variety of issues has occurred, with .the
Department prévailing in all instances. Litigation is still in
progress on a limited number of issues. The Depariment of
Revenue is confident that it will continue to prevail on this issue.
Because a fiscal impact cannot be readily determined if the State
were not o prevail, and due to the uncertainty in pred;ctmg the
outcome, a liability has not bean recorded.

Environmental Clean-up Actions - The State is involved in

environmental clean-up of propery owned by the State that has

the potential fo cause soil and groundwater contamination.

Sixieen sites have soil andior groundwater contamination

associated with underground storage tank releases with an -
estimated remadiation cost of $2.8 million,

The State is also involved in environmentsl remediations on 9
properties that do not involve releases from underground storage
tanks, with an estimated cost of $2.8 million.
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B. Commitments |
Primary Government

In addition to legal proceedings, the State Is party to commitments
wh-ich m'rméliy occ’u'f n gevemmemai bperations.

Ir; additron 1o ihe amctznt of eneumbrances outstanding at
June 30, 2002 reported as Fund Balance - Reserved for

.Encumbranc:es additional sbhgatzans at June 30, 2002
: f_epres_ensng -multi-year, : jong-term:’ commztments inclugled (in
-theusan_ds): S R : o
Transportation Fund $ 221,007
Transportation Revenue Bonds Caprtat

Projects Fund : 30,159

' -'Ganeral Fund - Department of Commerce
. pregrams inchiding: economic and community
‘development programs . . 2,909

‘I“he Envrmnmentaf Impmv@ment Fund {the Funci) was
estabhshed to admmaster the Clean Water Fund Loan Program.
Loans ‘are ‘made to iocal .units. of government for wastewster
treatment projects for terms of up to 20 years. These loans are
made at & number of -prescribed interest rates based on
env;mnm&ntat priority. . The loans contraciualiy are revenue
obhgataons or general obi |gat|cm$ of the local gcvemmental unit.
Add;ttonaily, varnious - s:atatery ‘provisions exist which pfovsde
further “security for payment. " The fund “has made ‘financial
assistance commitments of 5204 0 million as of June 30, 2002,
These ioan commitments are expecied 10 be met through
additional fecteral grants and proceeds from issuance of revenus
obligations.

in addition, the revenue obligation bonds of the Leveraged Loan
Program in the Fund are coliateralized by a security interest in all
the assets of the Leveraged Loan Program. Neither the full faith
and credit nor the taxing power of the State is piedged for the
payment of the Fund's revenue obligation bonds. However, as
the loans granted 1o local units of government are at an interest
rate less than the revem_.ée bond rate, the State is obligated by the
Fund's General Resolution 1o fund, at the time each loan is made,
a reserve which subsidizes the Leveraged Loan Program in an
amount which offsets this interest disparity.

Also, Wisconsin Statutes require that the Fund provide financial
hardship assistance for those communities that qualify under Wis.
Stat. Sec. 281.58. This assistance may come in the forn of
rediced interest rates or granis (not to exceed 70 percent of
project costs). At fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, future
commitments for hardship grants totaled $112.3 million.

The Patients Compensation Fund may be required to purchase an
annuity as a result of a claim settiement. Under specific annuity
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arrangements, the fund may have ultimate respens'ibi_iity } fof
annuity payments if the annuity company and the reassignment.”
company default on annuity paymenis. One of the fund's annuity
providers has defaulted on $600 thousand in annuity ;Saymeﬂfs.
The total estimated replacement value of the fund's annulties 'és
of June 30, 2002 was $132.8 million. The fund reserves the nght
to pursue collection from Stafe guarantee funds.

State Public Deposit Guarantee - As required by Wis. Stat. Séc.
34.08, the State is to' make payments to public depositors for
proofs of loss (e.g., loss resulting from a bank failure) up to $400
thousand per depositor above the amount of federal insurémie. )
This statutory requirement guarantees that the State will make
payments in favor of the public depositor that has submitted 2
proof of lpss. Payments would be made in the order in which
satisfactory proofs of ioss are received by the State's Department
of Financial Institutions, untit the designated appropriat_io_r}"is
exhausted. At June 30, 2002, the appropriation available totaled
$26.4 million. Losses become fixed as of the date of t?xe'ipss. A
public depositor experiencing a loss must assign its interest in'the
deposit, to the extent of the amount paid, to the Depariment of
Financial Institutions. Any recovery made by the Departmen"t of
Financial institutions under the assignment is {o be repaid 1o the
appropriation. The possibilty of a material loss resulting from
payments to and recovery from public depositors is remote. -

The Board of Commissioners of Public Lands (BCPL) — The
BCPL has entered into a gommitment with the Green Bay!Browri'
County Professional Football Stadium District (the Distri_i;._t) fo
become a “standby bend purchaser” in the event that ceftain
terms and conditions as set forth in a Standby Bond Purchase
Agreement between the BCPL and the District are met. At June
30, 2002, $30.4 million of cash balance has been restricted in the
Common Schoo! Fund, a permanent fund, for this purpose.
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' Componént Uriits

The W;sr:ansm Housmg and Economic Deve!cpment Authority’s
mission was expanded since its creation io include admmxstratlon
of the Agﬂcultu_ral and Business Progfams. These pragrams
‘administer funds ‘that are legisiatively app_rbpriated to subsidize
interest and provide g%:arantees of principal balances of qualifying
loans. At June 30, 2002, outstandmg loan guarantees totaled
$3‘t 7 mtilzon

P -'NOTE 23 SK}BSEQUENT EVENTS
anary Govemment
: Long*term Debt

Sfate of Wscons:n Generaf QObligation Bonds - In September
2002, the State issued $2.0 million of 2002 Series E general
oblsgatlon bonds to be used to fund veterans primary morigage
loans. ‘Interest is payabie on May 1 and November 1, beginning
May 1, 2003, ‘with the bonds maturmg May 1, of the years 2004
thfough 2018 :

In Septem_ber'zeoz, the State issued $13.0 million of 2002 Series
F general obligation bonds 1o be used to fund veterans primary
morigage loans. Irterest is payable on May 1 and November 1,

. begmnmg May 1, 2003 w;th ihe bonds. matunng May 1. of the
years: 2004 through 2033

in October 2092 the State issued $190 6 mitlion of 2002 Senes G
general obilgatmn bonds to be used for the acquisition,
- construction, davelopment i extensuoﬂ, eniargement, or
improvement of land, water, property, highways, buildings,
equipment, or facilities for bubiic purﬁoses. Interest is payable on
May 1 and November 1, beginning May 1, 2003, with bonds
~ maturing May 1, of the years 2004 through 2023,

Revenue Bonds -~ In Qctober 2002, the Department of
- Transportation  issued $200.0 million of 2002 Series A
transportation revenue bonds. The bond proceeds will be used to
pay the costs of major highway projects. Interest rates vary from
3.0 to 5.0 percent, payable January 1 and July 1, beginning July
1, 2003. The bonds mature or July 1 of the years 2004 through
2023.

in August 2002, the Environmental Improvement Fund issued
$85.5 million in Clean Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2002
Serles 2. The proceeds were deposited in an escrow account to
provide for fulure debt service requirements on $86.0 million of
various clean water revenue bonds outstanding at the time of the
refunding.

Commercial Paper Nofes ~ In August and September 2002, the
Siate issued $62.3 million of Pefroleum Inspection Fee Revenue
Extendible Municipat Commercial Paper notes.
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Component Units

Wisconsin Housing and Economic Develppment Authority —  In
July 2002, the Authority issued $160.0 milion of the Home
Ownership Revenue Bonds, 2002 Series E, F (taxable), G and H.
These bonds were issued under the 19888 Home Ownérship
Revenue Bond Resolution. -

In October 2002, the Authority issued $95.0 million of the Home
Ownership Revenue Bonds, 2002 Series | {AMT) and J (taiable)
These bonds were issued under the 1887 Home 0wnershap
Revenue Bond Resolution. :

The Authority entered into interest rate swap agreements as part
of the two bond issues subsequent to June 30, 2002. These
agreements include requirements for the pledging of assets
based on the Authority's credit rating. As of October 31, 2062
there was no requlremerzt to pledge assets.

In Juiy 2002, the Authority redeemed $38.9 million of the Housing
Revenue Bonds, 1992 Series A. These bonds were redeemed
from mortgage prepayments and the proceeds of the Housing
Revenue Bonds 2002 Series C. In July 2002, the Authority
redeemed $62.% rillion of the Housing Revenue Bonds, 1992
Series B, C and D. These bonds were redeemed from mortgage
prepayments and the proceeds of the Housing Revenue bonds
2002 Series B and G and from a portion of the 2002 Seraes A
bonds,

University of Wisconsin Hospitais ang Chinics Authority {the
Hospital) - In September 2002, the Hospital cancelied the interest
rale swap agreement with a counterparty under which the
difference between the fixed- and floaling-rate interest amounts
calculated on an agreed-upon notional principal amount (345.5
million) were exchanged. The canceliation resulted in a gain to
the Hospital of $1.1 million refiecting additional market value
appreciation subseguent to June 30, 2002

In October 2002, the Hospital issued $68.5 million of Hospital
Revenue Bonds Series 2002. The Series 2002 bonds were
issued in two (2) series, Series 2002A and Series 2002B. The
bond proceeds are designated to finance qualified capital
projects,

Bond Issue Series 2002A were issued as Short-Term Adjustable
Rate Securities in the amount of $55.6 million and were initialy
Bsued in the Auction Mode with a 28-day Rate Period. Principal
payments on the Bond lssue Series 2002A, ranging from $.5
million to $3.9 million, are due annually commencing in April 2013
through April 2032, Interest on the Bond lssue Series 2002A s
payable at the end of each Rate Period (initizlly a 28-day Rate
Period) and thereafier at the sum of subsequent Auction and
Service Charge Rates. The initiaf interest rate was 1.80% per
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annum at the time of issuance. The Bond issue Senes 2002A 15
insured by Financial Security Assurance Inc.

Bond Issue Senes 2{}028 were issued as Fixed Rate Serial bonds
in the amount of $12.9 milion. " The Series 20028 ponds were
sold at & premium totaling ‘approximately $.7. This' premium will
be amortized to interest expense on a straight-line basis over the
- ife of the bonds Principal payménts an the bond Issue Series
20028, rarsgmg from §1.4 million to $1.9 million, ‘are due annually
commenting in April 200ﬁ through Aprit 2013, interest on the
'B{md 1ssue Series 2002B is not guararﬁeeci by a municipal bond
;nsuranoe poiuc:y or any azher form of credit enbancement

in Octoi}e; 2{)02, the Haspitat also entered into an interest rate
swap in order to convert a portion of the Series 2002A _shem:erm
" adjustable rate securities o fixed rates. The nofional amount of
this :swap agreement was $21.4 million -effective October 31,
2002, The terms of the swap agreement are for the Hospital to
pay me'counterparty a fixed _'rate of 3.85 percent per annum,
" payable semiannually, and the Hospital will receive a floating rate
of 70 percent of cne-month LIBOR per annum, payable monthly.
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.Required Supplemeﬂtary Informatmn

Enfrastructure Assets Reported Using
the Modlf ed Approach

‘E‘he ‘State has ado;:ted the modnﬁed approach For reporting
-mfrast;uczure assels. Under the modsﬁed apgmach infrastructurs
_ assets are not deprec;ated as Iang as the State can demonsirate
: thai the assets are pmpeﬂy managed and are bemg preseweci at
" or above an established condition level. Instead of depreciation,

the costs ‘to maintain and preserve infrastructure assets are
. expensed, while additions énd imp'rovements are capitalized. The
- State owgs approxxmately 11 200 muies of roads and 4,900

* . bridges.

| -:Road bsétmrk

Condxtzon assessrmani‘s are completed on a iwmyear cycle
Numerous measures are used to assess the cam:htzcn of the
State’s road network, The' State has adopted the international
Rﬁughﬂess ‘Index’ {IRY, as defined by the Federal Hzghway
Admamstrat:on asits pnmary condmon measure. IRlis measured
ona scaEe of 0 to 5, with an IRI of 2. 69 or greatef bemg deﬁned as
a poef ride. Roads with a ¥ poor 1R assessment cause negatwe
|mpams for the travelmg publac hy decreasmg driver comfort and
mcreasmg the damage o vehzcies angd goods. 1t is the State’s
policy to ensure no more than 15 percent of its roads receive a
"."poer" iRl assessment' Al June 30,2002, appmx:mately 4.6
pereent of the Stet& road r:eiwerk had a pnor” IRt raisng '

The State estimated that during Fiscal Year 2002, it wouid cost
approximately $470.7 million to maintain and preserve the road
network at, or above, the established condition lsvel. Actual
maintenance and preservation costs of the road network were
$437.6 million, $33.1 million less than estimated.  The State of
Wisconsin, Depariment of Transportation's multi-year budgeting
process, allowing encurmbrances fo camy forward, makes a
comparison of actual to estimated amounts difficult since
expenditures for the curreni year may have been budgeted and
commitied to a project in prior years.
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Bridge Network

Condition assessments are completed on a two-year cycle, with
more freguent inspections compleled if warranted. "_r?_ae' State has
adopted the National Bridge inventory (NBI) 10-point rating scale
as its primary oondit_écrs measure. Using the Federal Highway
Admiristration’s definition, a bridge is considered “fstmc'tufaliy
deficient” i it has an NBI score of 4 or less on its deck,
supersiructure, or substructure. “Structurally deficient” bridges
cause negative impacts for the public by increasing the likelihood
that heavy loads will need to be rerouted to less efficient routes,
thus increasing logistic costs for State businesses. 1t s the
State's policy to ensure no more than 15 percent of its bridges are
“structurally deficient”. At June 30, 2002, approximately 7.6
percent of the State bridge network was rated stmcturalty
deﬁment

The State estimaled that during FY 2002, # would cost
approximately $33.6 million to maintain and preserve the bridge
network at, or above, the established condition level, Actual costs

_for maintenance and preservation were $38.4 miflion, $4.8 million

more than estimated. The Depariment of ’Yransportatzon s mulfi- .
year hudgeting process, allowing encumbrances to carry forward,
makes a comparison of actual to estimated amounts difficut,
since expenditures for the current year may have been budgeted
and committed to a project in prior years,



State of Wisconsin

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General and Major Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

{in Thousands)

General Fund

Original Final Actual
B’udget Budget Amounts
Unexbemied Budgatary Fund Balances,
Beginning of Year 935,883
Revenues and Transfers (Inflows):
Taxes 10,677,729 10,226,169 10,038,703
Deparimental:
Tobacco Settlement 155,526 155,526 156,215
Tobacco Securitization 450,000 681,000 681,000
Other 0,964,803 9,878,516 9976159
Transfers from: :
Transportation Fund 6,692 11,026 11,545
Veterans Morigage Loan Repayment Fund 224 224 224
Nonmaior Funds 7.664 8,685 8,685
Total Revenues and Transfers 21,262,638 21,062,146 20,870,532
Amounis Avaiiable for Appropriation 21,806,424
Appropriations and Transfers {Outflows}:
Commerce 260,538 256,084 207,958
Education 8,766,778 8,871,414 8,583,634
Envirenmental Resources 268,845 257,535 228211
Human Relations and Resources 7,710,719 8,236,672 8,531,381
General Executive 689,772 819,440 622,510
Judicial 104,543 108,009 107,534
Legislative 63,934 62,467 62,228
General 1,846,850 2,802,717 2,875,614
Fransfers to:
Generai Fund - - -
Tobacco Control Fund 6,032 6,032 6,032
Other Nonmajor Funds 408 405 406
Total Appropriations and Transfers 19,818,217 22,521,776 21,225 507
Fund Baiances, End of Year 580,917
Less Encumbrances Qutstanding at June 30, 2002 (506,279
Fund Balances, End of Year
Budgstary Basis 74,638
Reconciliation of the End of Year, Budgetary Basis,
Fund Balance to the Amount Reporied in the
Annual Fiscal Report
Amcunt from Annual Fiscal Report 77,429
Late Audit Adiustrnent {2791}
Revised End of Year Fund Balance,
Budgetary Basis 74,638
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Transportation Fund

Tobacco Settlement Endowment Fund

Original Final Actual Criginal Final Actual
Budget Budget Amounts Budget Budget Amounts
3 317,414 $ 0
3 887934 § 887,934 887,934 - § - .
1,301,281 1,301,291 1,301,291 1,276,155 1,276,155 1,276,155
2,188,225 2,188,225 2,189,225 1,276,165 1,276,155 1,276,155
2,506,839 1,278,155
83 87 87 - - “
3,121,493 3,305,560 2,100,788 - . -
4,241 2,096 2,085 - - .
17,338 17.743 17,743 - - -
6,692 11,026 11,545 605,526 836,526 681,000
$ 3140848 % 3,336,812 2,141,249 605,526 § 836,526 681,000
365,380 595,155
{910,580} -
$ (545,189) $ 595,155

e s
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B State of Wtsconsm

-Notes To Reqmred Supplementary Information

NOTE’E BUDGETARY mFORMAﬂon |
B A Budgetary-GAAP Reportmg ﬂeconclhatlorz

: '._'The accompanymg Budgetary Compansen Scheduie compares tha Eegaily adOpted buéget {more fully described in RSI Note ‘t B) wrth

-actual’ data on.a budgesary basis. Because acceuntmg prmcrptes ‘appiied for purposes of developing data on the budgetary basis dn‘fer
any '.s:gmﬁc;antly from those used to present fmanc:a% statements in. corzformtty with ‘generally accepted accountmg principles (GAAP) a :
L recaﬁmi:atson of bas:s and parspeciwe dtfferences as m‘ June 30, 2002 is prasenteé below ( in thousands): e

Tobagco

Transportation  Settlement |
General Fund - Fund - Endowment -
: 'Fund baiance Jt.me 30,2002 (bucigetary bas:s budgetary fund structure} _ IR
As repor{ed on the budgetary companson scheduie _ R f_ S B T4638 § (545,189) $ 595,155
Reclass;ﬁcatnons : : : - . _
“To efiminate the effect of encumbrances that: were raperieé as expend:tures . : e
“under’ budgetary reportmg {basis difference) S B0B,2TS 910,580 s
: To reclass;fy aciwmes reported in another GAAP. fund ype (perspectwe dlfferences) ’ )
- Enterpnse funds {exc;ept for the Umversnty of Wsoonsm System) o : 15,685 - R
"ivaerSity of Wisconsin System . S (220,78)) - S,
. Internal service ﬂmds o ot Gl e o S 12,143 - e
“Fidugiary funds L o . (39,447) - e
' Transportatzon Revenue Boncis debt serwce fund : L S o 11,315 -
Fund baiance June 30, 2{){)2 (GAAP ﬁmd strucﬁure budgeiary baszs excladmg :
Encumbrances treated as expendltures at year end) S 338,516 376,705 585,155 .
Adjustments {basrs d:fferences)
“i‘o adjust expendatufes for the municipal and courzty shared fevenue program {492.878) o -~
To accrus the amount ‘due to the General Fund frem the Tobacco Semement
Endowment Fund tha: wti! be appiied to ihe munzcspa! and couraty shareﬁ _
U TeVenue program payment SRR o 311,361 e {311,381)
To adjust expenditures for State pmperty tax s;red;t program (354,030 - -
To accrue recewabkes and establish payables for individual income taxes {net) (658,813) o -
To defer revenues for gross: rece;pts public ut;!sty taxes : (151,521) - ) -
To ad;ust revenues and expenditures for tax-reiated ;tems and L : B
other tax credit/aid pmgrams {net) BRI ' ' : {276,821) (894) S
To accrue un;}am Medicaid claims {net of receivable fmm federal govemmeﬂi} (166,005} - e
To'adjust expenmiures!revanues for certain ma;or Health and Family Serv:ces o
and Workforce ﬁ}evelcpmerst accruals and deferrals {net) : . {44.203) - i
To accrue State educahor;al aids paymeats deferred until the subsequenz year (75,6003 - -
To ad;ust revenuas and expend;tures for otbez items {neﬁ} e 78,150 {19,481} -
Fund balance June 30 2002 (GAAP fund struc{ure GAAP hasis) as reparzed oh :
The governmental fur;tﬁ sta!ements) . o . ${1.484,333) 3 356,330 $ 283,794
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State of Wisconsin

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

B. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The State's biennial budget is prepared using a modified cash
basis of accounting. The final budget is primarily & general
purpose revenue and expenditure budget General purpose
revenues consist of general taxes and miscellaneous receipts
which are paid into the General Fund, lose their identity, and are
then available for appropriation by the Legislature. The remaining

revenues consist of program revenues, which are credited by law

o an appropnation {0 finance a s;:eczf ied program or State
ageﬂcy, and segfegaied revenues wmch are paid mto separate
identifiable funds :

Whlie Staie departments and agencies are required io submit
estimates of expected revenues for program revenue and
segregaiecf revenue catego;ues these estimates are not formally
mcorporated into the adopted  budget exce;:s for revenue
estimates of the Lottery Fund. As a result, legally budgeted
revenues for these categories are not available and,
cansequently, actuai amounis are reporied in the budget column
of the Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

Expenditure budgeting differs for the varous types of
apptopriations. 'For ‘most appropriations, budgeted expenditures
equal the amount from the adopted budget plus any subsequent
legislative or administrative revisions. — While State statutes
pr_ohiﬁi; spending beyond ii_u_dga_tas’y aythority, a provision is made
to include the value of accounts receivable, inventories and wark
in process in identifying available revenues. The State also
utilizes nohbudget accbunts for which no hudget is established
but exgﬁanditures may be incurred. As a resull, actual
expenditures may exceed budgeted amounts in  certain
categories.

Budgets are required by State law for the statutorily defined
General Fund, and c¢ertain special revenue and permanent funds.
The budgetary basis of accounting required by State law differs
materially from the basis used to report revenues and
expenditures in accordance with GAAP. Other variances arise
because the State's biennial budget is developed according to the
statutory required fund structure which differs extensively from the
fund structure used in the GAAP basis financial statements. This
difference is primarily caused by the eiimination of the University
of Wisconsin System, and various fiduciary, proprietary and other
governmental fund activity from the statutory General and special
revenue funds. Conseguently, 2 reconciliation befween budgetary
basis and GAAP basis is provided in Note 1-A of the notes to the
required supplemeniary infarmation.

The Budgsetary Comparison Schedule for the General and the
major specisl revenue funds presents both the original and final
appropriated budgets, as weli as the actual inflows, outfiows, and
fund balance on the budgetary basis. The supplementary budget
corparison schedule provides this same information (with the
exception of the original budget data) for the nonmajor
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governmental funds with annual budgets, The capital project.and
debt service funds are excluded from this schedule because no
comprehensive budget is approved for these funds, Cerfain
special revenue funds are also excluded. The Employee T rust
Fund Administration Fund is extracted from a -statutory
unbudgeted fund type, while the Wisconsin Public Brdadcasting
Foundation is 2 blended component unit that is neither budgeted
nor included under statutory reporting.  Of the permanent funds,
only the sttonca! Society Fund and a portion of the Cammon
School Fund are budgeted :

While the }egal |evel of budgetary control for the reported funds is
maintained at the appropriation line as specified by the
Legislature in Chapter 20 of the Wisconsin Statutes, this level of
detail is impractical for inclusion in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Accordingly, a supplementary report s
available upon request which provides budgetary compaﬁsdns at
the fegal fevel of contral. o

in general, supplemental appropriations require the approvél' of
the Joint Finance Committee of the Legislature.  Routine
adjustments, such as pay plan supplements and rent inc_;reés_res,
are distributed by the Division of Executive Budget and Finance
from non-agency specific appropriations authorized by the
Legislature. Various supplemental appropriations were approved
during the year and have been incorporated inte the budget
figures.

Appropriation unexpended balances lapse at year-end or forward
to the subsequent fiscal year depending on the type of
appropriation involved:

» Continuing - unexpended balances automatically forward to
ensuing years until fully depleted or repealed by subsequent
action of the Legislature.

= Annual.

« General Purpose Revenue - unencumbered balances lapse
at year end.

* Program Revenue - unexpended cash balances may be
forwarded to the next fiscal year.

« Bienmial - unexpended balances or deficits automatically
forward 1o the second year. At the end of the second year all
unencumbered general purpose revenue balances lapse.

« Sum sufficient - moneys are appropriated and expended in the
amounts necessary to accomplish the purpose specified.

Encumbrances may be carried over to the next fiscal year as a
revision to the budgetary appropriation with Department of
Administration approval. Under  budgetary  reporiing,
encumbrances are treated like expendifures and are shown as a
reduction of fund balance. Under GAAP reporting, encumbrances
outstanding at year end for purchase orders and coniracts
axpected to be honored in the following year are reported as
reservations of fund balance since they do not constiute
expenditures or liabilities.
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State of Wisconsin

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE: Special revenue funds account for the
proceeds of specific ravenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for 2 specified purpose. The State's special
revenue funds are described below:

The Conservation Fund accounts for the management of the
State's fish, wildlife, parks and other natural resources with funds
provided from hunting and fishing licenses, recreational fees and
forestry taxes.

The Heritage State Parks and Forests Fund accounts for the
funding for operations and maintenance of State parks, southem
State forests, and recrestion areas either by making partial
matching grants to "friends groups™ or by accepting expenditure
transfers from park and forest programs in the Conservation
Fund.

The Wisconsin Health Education Loan Repayment Fund
accounts for administrative expenditures related to issuing MHealth
Education Loan bonds. These expenditures are funded from
trustee transfers.

The Waste Management Fund accounts for the ciosure and
tong-term care of approved landfills from fees imposed on landfili
operators.

The Wisconsin Eiection Campaign Fund accounts for taxpayer
donated funding for political candidates. The donations are
intended to replace special interest funds.

The Investment and Local Impact Fund accounts for grants and
ioans io municipalities where metalliferous minerals exist to offset
the negative effects of mining projects. These granis and loans
are funted with faxes which have been imposed on mining
activities.

The industriat Building Construction Loan Fund accounts for
economic development grants and loans for the construction of
industrial buildings. These grants and loans are funded primarity
with investment incorng.

The Seif-insured Employers Liability Fund establishes a
reserve to cover claims for employees of employers who have
become insclvent. - These employers were pravicusly determined
o be exempt from the requirement to carry accident or death
insurance. The reserve is aiso used to cover the cost of
insurance carrier or insurance service organization used to
process, investigate, and pay valid claims from the injured
employees.
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‘or disabled employees with work-related

The Medical Assistance Trust Fund accounts for moneys
received from the Medical Assistance (MA) program  via
Infergovernmental Transfers. The moneys are used o fund MA
eligibie activities.

The Work Injury Suppiemental Benefit Fund accounts for
compensatory payments to survivors of fatally injured employees
injuries. This
compensation is provided with funds collected from State
employers and insurance carriers.

The Tobacco Control Fund accounts for a portion of the moneys
received from the settiement of the lawsuit between several
states, including Wisconsin, and the tobacco companies. The
meneys are used to fund health care related costs including
grants for tobacco prevention, research, and intervention.

The Uninsured Employers Fund accounts for the administration
of insurance enforcement activities and compensation to injured
employees of uninsured employers. The revenue is primarily
provided by funds collected frem uninsured employers.

The Utilily Pubific Benefits Fund accounts for veiuntary
contributions and public benefits fees collected from customers
by utilities to assist in funding low income assistance grants and
energy conservation and efficiency grants.

The Mediation Fund accounts for the reschution of disputes
regarding medical maipractice. Dispute filing fees and fees
charged to health care providers are the primary mevenue
sources.

The Agricuitural Chemical Cleanup Fund accounts for the
portion of the costs responsible persons pay to ciean up fertilizer
and pesticide spills and historical handling areas. Ferfitizer and
pesticide licenses and registration fees primarily provide the
revenus.

The Agrichemical Management Fund accounts for the
regulation and enforcement of pesticide, feed and fertilizer
industries. The revenue is generated by hocenses and fees
assessed o these industries.

{Continued)




State of Wisconsin

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

{Continued)

The Agricultural Producer Security Fund accounts for the
program foc secure payments to producers. This fund is
supported primarily with fees, surcharges, assessments,
reimbursements and bond proceeds of surety bonds.

The Employee Trust Funds Administration Fund accounts for
transactions related to the administration and general operations
of the Department of Employee Trust Funds.

The Historical Legacy Trust Fund accounts for moneys to
commemorate the 200th anniversary of statehood. Gifts, grants,
and bequests generate the revenug. Alse, all moneys received
by the State Sesquicentennial Commission after September 30,
1968 are reported in this fund.

‘The Petroleum Inspection Fund accounts for revenues received
from inspection fees on petroleum products shipped into
Wisconsin and proceeds received from revenue bonds. These
resources are used for pefroleum inspection programs,
environmental cieanup awards, clean air and water administration
and other environmental programs in the State.

The - Environmental Fund accounts for the developmeént and
enforcement of groundwater standards, as well as assistance in
the emergency response, investigation and clean up of
contaminated sites. - This assistance is funded by fees on
activities or substances which may contaminate groundwater and
fees for solid waste tipping, pesticide licenses and oft inspections.

The Dry Cleaner Environmental Respense Fund accounts for
the financial assistance for the remediation of environmental
contamination caused by the spiliage of dry cleaning solvents.
Revenues used to fund this program are dry cieaning facility
license and solvent fees.

The Recycling Fund accounts for the moneys from the recycling
surcharge tax and recycling fees, used to reduce the amount of
solid waste disposed of in landfills and incinerators.

The Information Technology Investment Fund accounis for
revenues, primarily subscription fees from vendors, used to carry
out information technology development projects, including
paying for costs associated with technology-related equipment,
software and support.
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The Universal Service Fund accounts for various programs that
ensure that all State residents receive  essential
felecommunication services at reasonable prices and that they
have access to certain advanced telecommunications service
capabiliies. Assessment of entities in the telecommunications
industry is the primary source of revenues. '

The Wisconsin Public Broadcasting Foundation {Foundation}
Fund accounts for financial resources generated to support the
activities of the Educational Communications Board. The primary
revenue sources of the Foundation are from gifts, grants and
contributions.

The Children's Trust Fund accounts for the program which
provides information and encourages the development of child
abuse and neglect prevention programs. This fund is supported
primarily with investment income and moneys received as
contributions, grants, gifts and bequests.

CAPITAL PROJECTS: Capital projects funds account for
financial resources used for the acquisition, construction,
renovation or repair of major capitat facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). The Stale’s
capital projects funds are described below: :

The Building Trust Fund accounts for repair projects of major
capital facilities which are funded primarily through General Fund
and agency transfers.

The Energy Efficiency Fund accounts for improvements on
heating plants and loans to State agencies for energy efficiency
projects.  Revenues are primarily derived from utility rebates,
utility matching funds, savings from improvements to heating
costs and General Fund supported borrowing.

The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for revenues from
general obligation bond proceeds, General Fund transfers and
invesiment pool interest earmings which are primarily used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and for repair
and maintenance projects.

The Transportation Revenue Bonds Fund accounts for the
accumulation of financing resources for the construction,
maintenance, and repair of certain major highway projects and
adminisirative facilities.

{Continued)




State of Wisconsin

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

{(Continued)

DEBT SERVICE: Debt service funds account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal,
interest and related costs of general long-term obligations.

The Bond Security and Redemption Fund accounis for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principai,
interest and related costs of, general obligation bond debt.

The Petroleum inspection Revenue Bonds Fund accounts for
the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principal,
interest and related costs of, petroleum revenue bond obligations.

The Transportation Revenue Bonds Fund accounts for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principal,
interest and related costs of ftransportation revenue bond
obligations.

PERMANENT: Permanent funds are used to report resources
that are legally restricted to the extent that only eamings, not
principal, may be used to support the State’s programs.

- The Agricuitural College Fund accounts for federat lang grant
revenues used as public purpose loans for municipalities and

+ school districts.

“The Common School Fund accounts for revenues received from
the sale of federally granted land, fines and forfeitures from penal
law breaches, and the disposal of escheated property. These
moneys are used for public purpose loans to municipalities and
school districts. Eamnings of this fund are distributed to aid local
school districts and to cover administrative costs incurred by the
Public Lands Commission.

The Normal Schoof Fund accounts for public purpose loans o
municipaliies and school districts. These lpans are financed with
revenues derived from the sale of federally granted fand and
timber. The interest generated from this fund is used to support
and maintain State universities.

The University Fund accounts for federal fand grant revenues
used for public ivans to municipalities and schoot districts.
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The Historical Society Fund accounts for investment income
and donations received by the State Historical Society to assist in
the operations of the State’s archives, research and library
services, museums, historic preservation, and executive and
administrative services.

The Benevolent Fund accounts for investment income used for
the care, custody and education of residents commifted to the
Lincoln Hills Schoot.




State of Wisconsin

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2002
{In Thousands)
Special Revenue Funds
Heritage Wisconsin
State Health Wisconsin
Parks and Education Loan Waste Election
Conservation Forests Repayment Management Campaign
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents -1 58604 $ 1,069 Z2 8 11,082 § 593
Investmenis - - - " -
Receivables (net of estimated
unceliectible accounts):
Taxes 21728 - - - -
Loans to Locat Govemments - - - - -
Other Receivables 1,382 - 13 - -
Due from Other Funds 15,059 - - - -
Due from Other
Governments 10,458 . - - -
Inventories 2478 - . - -
Prepaid Hems 1,303 B 1 . -
Advances to Other Funds - - - . -
Restricted and Limited Usse Assetls:
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - - -
Other Assels - - - - -
Total Assets 5 110,981 § 1,068 16 3 - 11,003 503
Liabilities and Fund Balances
{iabilides:
Accounis Payable and Other
Accrued Liabilities 3 11,337 § - - % - % -
Due o Other Funds 18,022 - 7 - -
Interfund Payables - - - -
Due o -Other Governments 14,765 - - - -
Tax Refunds Payable 281 - - - -
Tax and Cther Deposits 967 - - 4,758 -
Deferred Revanue 3,983 - - - -
Interest Payable - - - - -
Advances from Other Funds - - - - -
Short-term Notes Payable - - “ - -
General Obligation Bonds
Payable - . - - .
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Payable - - - - -
Totat Liabilities 49 366 - 7 4 758 -
Fungd Balances:
Rasarved for
Encumbrances 11,770 - 16 = -
Reserved for Inventories 2478 - . . R
Reserved for Prepaid lemns 1,308 - i - -
Reserved for Restricted Funds 277 - - "
Reserved for Long-term
Receivables - - - N .
Reserved for Advancas to
Other Funds - - . . .
Unreserved:
Undesignated 45 786 1,069 {93 €,334 563
Total Furd Balance 81,615 1,069 g £,334 593
Total Liab#ities and
Fund Batance g 110881 § 1,069 ” 16 & 11,082 3 59%
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